BOARD REPORT

Dear Members,

The Directors have pleasure in presenting their report and Audited Accounts for the year
ended March 31, 2021.

Financial Results / Financial Highlights

(Rs. in crore)

Particulars 2020-21 2019-20
Profit / (Loss) Before Depreciation, exceptional items 62.08 64.30
& Tax

Less: Depreciation, amortization, impairment and 0.49 0.29
obsolescence

Profit / (Loss) before exceptional items and tax 61.59 64.01
Add: Exceptional Items - -
Profit / (Loss) before tax 61.59 64.01
Less: Provision for tax - 1.11
Profit for the period carried to the Balance Sheet 61.59 62.90
Add: Other comprehensive Income 0.00 0.01
Total Comprehensive income of the year 61.59 62.91
Add: Balance brought forward from previous year 219.97 157.06
Balance to be carried forward 281.56 219.97

State of Company Affairs:

The gross revenue and other income for the financial year under review were Rs.211.48
crore as against Rs.219.05 crore for the previous financial year registering a decrease

of 3.45%. The loss before tax and loss after tax was Rs.61.59 crore for the financial
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year under review as against Rs.62.91 crore for the previous financial year, registering
a decrease in loss by 2.09% respectively.

COVID-19 update

A major part of the period under review was impacted due to the COVID-19 pandemic.
This was mainly on account of disruption in supply chain, capacity underutilization,
logistics related issues, additional costs involved in ensured the safety of all employees

across all project sites of the Company.

The Company focused on supporting the public health system in dealing with the

COVID-19 pandemic and the most vulnerable members of the society.

It was ensured that employees are safe while also ensuring business continuity. The
Company implemented safety and hygiene protocols like wearing face masks, social
distancing norms, workplace sanitation, employee awareness programs across the
Organisation and project sites. The protocols are regularly reviewed and updated based

on revision in guidelines received from concerned authorities from time to time.
Capital & Finance

The Company has not issued and allotted share capital during the year.

During the year the Company has redeemed 360 debentures having a face value of
Rs.10 lakh each.

Capital Expenditure

As at March 31, 2021 the gross fixed and intangible assets including leased assets,
stood at Rs.9.44 crore and the net fixed and intangible assets, including leased assets,
at Rs.8.65 crore. No Capital Expenditure was incurred during the year. The company

has not incurred any capital expenditure towards Intangible assets.

Deposits

The Company has not accepted deposits from the public falling within the ambit of
Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed thereunder.



Kudgi Transmission Limited

Depository System
As on March 31, 2021, the shares of the Company are held in the following manner:

Equity shares:

100% of the Company’s equity paid up capital representing 19,26,00,000 equity shares

@ Rs.10/- each are held in dematerialized form.

Non-convertible Debentures (NCD):

100% of Debentures representing 14090 NCDs @ Rs.10 lakh each are held in
dematerialized form and are listed with Bombay Stock Exchange.

Subsidiary Companies

The Company does not have any Subsidiary/Associate/Joint Venture Companies.

Particulars of loans given, investments made, guarantees given or security
provided by the Company

Since the Company is engaged in the business of developing infrastructure facilities,
the provisions of Section 186 except sub-section (1) of the Act are not applicable to the

Company.

Details of loans given, investments made or guarantees given or security is provided in

the financial statement.

Particulars of Contracts or Arrangements with related parties

All related party transactions during the year have been approved in terms of the Act
and Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosures
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The entire related party transactions were at arms’-
length basis and in the ordinary course of business. The details of material Related
Party Transactions are provided in Annexure 1 (AOC-2).

Amount to be carried to reserve

During the year Company has not transferred any amount to Reserve.
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Dividend

The Board has not recommended dividend for the financial year 2020-2021.

Material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the
company, between the end of the financial year and the date of the report

No material changes or commitments adversely affecting the financial position of the
Company have occurred between the end of the financial year and the date of this
report.

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings
and Outgo

Conservation of Energy and Technology absorption

In view of the nature of activities which are being carried on by the Company,
Section 134(3)(m) of the Act read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,

2014 conservation of energy and technology absorption does not apply to the Company.

Foreignh exchange earnings and outgo

During the year, the Company has not incurred any transaction in foreign currency.

Risk Management Policy

The Company follows the risk management policy of its Holding Company and has in
place a mechanism to inform the Board Members about risk assessment and
minimization procedures and periodical review to ensure that executive management

controls risk by means of a properly designed framework.

Corporate Social Responsibility

The Company has constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee in
accordance with requirements of Section 135 of the Act read with the rules made
thereunder. As on March 31, 2021, the committee comprised of Dr. Koshy Varghese,
Mr. Pramod Sushila Kapoor and Mr. P. G. Suresh Kumar as Members of the Committee.

The terms of reference of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee are in line with

the provisions of the Act.
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During the year, three CSR committee meeting was held and the details are given
below,

Date Strength Members Present
02.05.2020 3 3
09.10.2020 3 3
25.03.2021 3 3

The CSR Policy as approved by the Board of Directors is available on website of its

Holding Company (L&T IDPL) www.Intidpl.com.

The details of CSR expenditure for the FY 2020-21 is enclosed to this Report as

‘Annexure 2’.

Details of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel appointed / resigned during
the year
Pramod Sushila Kapoor, Director retired by rotation at the Annual General Meeting held

on September 30, 2020 and was reappointed as Director.

The Independent Directors of the Company have registered themselves on the

Independent Director’'s Databank.

The first term of 5 years of the Independent Directors of the Company concluded on
March 29, 2020. Subsequently, the Independent Directors were re-appointed for a
second term of 5 years from March 30, 2020 to March 29, 2025.

The qualification, technical knowledge and expertise of the Independent Directors are
best suited for the Company’s business. The Independent Directors were re-appointed
for the second term of 5 years as non-executive directors felt that the contribution of the
Independent Directors towards the progress of the Company was invaluable so far and

will continue to be so in future also.

Composition of Board of Directors of the Company as on March 31, 2021, stood as

below:


http://www.lntidpl.com/
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Nc;. Name of the Director Designation DIN
1 | Mr. Pramod Sushila Kapoor Director 02914307
2 | Mr. P. G. Suresh Kumar Director 07124883
3 | Dr. Koshy Varghese Independent Director 03141594
4 | Ms. Samyuktha Surendran g‘ﬁggﬁ?dem Woman 07138327

Mr. A. L. N. Varma had resigned as Chief Financial Officer with effect from January 10,

2021. Mr. Ajit Kumar K was appointed as Chief Financial Officer with effect from April

15, 2021.

The Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of the Company as on March 31, 2021 are:

S. . : Date of
No. Name Designation Appointment
1 |Mr. Ojes C. Madappattu Manager March 15, 2020

2 | Mr. R. G. Ramachandran

Company Secretary

October 28, 2015

Number of Meetings of the Board of Directors

The Meetings of the Board are held at regular intervals with a time gap of not more than

120 days between two consecutive

Meetings.

During the year five Board Meetings were held. The details of the Board meetings

conducted during the year are given below:

Date Board Strength Directors present
02.05.2020 4 4
07.07.2020 4 4
09.10.2020 4 4
08.01.2021 4 4
25.03.2021 4 4

Information to the Board

The Board of Directors has complete access to the information within the Company

which interalia includes:
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e Annual revenue budgets and capital expenditure plans

e Quarterly financials and results of operations

e Financing plans of the Company

e Minutes of the meeting of the Board of Directors, Audit Committee (AC), Nomination
and Remuneration Committee (NRC), Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
(CSR)

e Report on accidents

e Any materially relevant default, if any, in financial obligations to and by the Company

e Any issue which involves possible public or product liability claims of substantial
nature, including any Judgement or Order, if any, which may have strictures on the
conduct of the Company

e Development in respect of human resources

e Compliance or non-compliance of any regulatory, statutory nature or listing

requirements and investor service.

The Independent Directors have the freedom to interact with the Company’s
management. Interactions happen during the Board / Committee Meetings, when senior
company personnel are asked to make presentations about performance of the
Company. Presentations are made regularly to the Board/NRC/AC (minutes of Board,
AC and NRC are circulated to the Board), Presentations, inter alia cover business
strategies, management structure, management development and planning, half-yearly
and annual results, budgets, treasury, review of Internal Audit reports, risk

management, etc.

Audit Committee

The Company has constituted an Audit Committee in terms of the requirements of the
Companies Act, 2013. As on March 31, 2021, the Committee comprised of Dr. Koshy
Varghese, Ms. Samyuktha Surendran and Mr. Pramod Sushila Kapoor.

During the year, five audit committee meetings were held. The details of the meetings

conducted during the year under review are given below:
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Date Strength Members present
02.05.2020 3 3
07.07.2020 3 3
09.10.2020 3 3
08.01.2021 3 3
25.03.2021 3 3

Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy

L&T IDPL and its SPVs committed to the best practices based on the principle of
transparency, accountability, fairness and integrity to create long term sustainable value
for its employees and all stakeholders. Our company has in place vigil mechanism
procedure to provide an avenue to all stakeholders as and when they anticipates an
violation of company’s policies, code of conduct, an infringement of laws/ regulations,
or the governing documents to report, on her/his own ( by name or anonymously) to the
Compliance Officer, WBIC through email addressed to wbic@Intidpl.com,
compliance@Intidpl.com, or call to the HOTLINE number (access is only with the
Compliance Officer of the L&T IPDL). Reported incidents handled with confidentiality
and the company does not allow reprisals of any kind against those who in good faith,
report an infringement or suspicion of an infringement of the rules and guidelines. Our

company has also adopted Code of Conduct policy.

Company Policy on Director Appointment and Remuneration

The Company had constituted the Nomination and Remuneration Committee in
accordance with the requirements of the Act read with the Rules made thereunder. The
Committee comprised of Dr. Koshy Varghese, Ms. Samyuktha Surendran and Mr. P. G.

Suresh Kumar.

The details of the meetings conducted during the year under review are given below:

Date Strength Members Present

02.05.2020 3 3
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The Committee had formulated a policy on Director’'s appointment and remuneration
including recommendation of remuneration of the Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and
the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a

Director and also for KMP.

Declaration of independence

The Company has received declaration of independence as stipulated under Section
149(7) of the Act from the Independent Directors confirming that he/she is not

disqualified from continuing as an Independent Director.

Adequacy of Internal Financial Controls

The Company has designed and implemented a process driven framework for Internal
Financial Controls (‘IFC’) within the meaning of the explanation to Section 134(5)(e) of
the Act. For the year ended March 31, 2021, the audit committee and Board have opined
that the Company has sound IFC commensurate with the nature and size of its business
operations and operating effectively and no material weaknesses exist. The Company
has a process in place to continuously monitor the same and identify gaps, if any, and
implement new and / or improved controls wherever the effect of such gaps would have

a material effect on the Company’s operations.

Directors Responsibility Statement
The Board of Directors of the Company confirms that:

a) In the preparation of Annual Accounts, the applicable accounting standards have

been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures, if any.

b) The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently
and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial

year and of the profit or loss of the Company for that period.

c) The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other

irregularities.
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d) The Directors have prepared the Annual Accounts on a going concern basis.

e) The Directors have laid down an adequate system of internal financial control with
respect to reporting on financial statements and the said system is operating

effectively.

f) The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the
provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and were

operating effectively.

Performance Evaluation of the Board, its Committees and Directors

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board have laid down the
manner in which formal annual evaluation of the performance of the Board, committees

and individual directors has to be made.

It includes circulation of questionnaires to all Directors for evaluation of the Board and
its Committees, Board composition and its structure, its culture, Board effectiveness,
Board functioning, information availability, etc. These questionnaires also cover specific
criteria and the grounds on which all directors in their individual capacity will be

evaluated.

Further, the Independent Directors reviewed the performance of Board, Committees,
and Non-Executive Directors. The performance evaluation of the Board, Committees
and Directors was also reviewed by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and

the Board of Directors.
Disclosure of Remuneration
The information required under Section 197(12) of the Act and the Rules made

thereunder, is provided below.

The Directors of the Company are not paid any remuneration except sitting fees to
Independent Directors. Hence, the remuneration of the Directors to that of the

employees of the Company is not comparable.
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Compliance with Secretarial Standards on Board and General Meetings

The Company has complied with Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India on Board Meetings and General Meetings.

Protection of Women at Workplace

The Company has adopted a policy on Protection of Women's Rights at workplace in
line with the policy formulated by the Holding company. This has been widely
disseminated. The Company has an internal compliance committee under the Sexual
harassment of women at work place (Prevention, Prohibition and redressal) Act, 2013.
There were no complaints of sexual harassment received by the Company during the

year.

Auditors Report

The Auditors’ Reports on the financial statements for the financial year 2020-21 are
unqualified. The Notes to the accounts referred to in the Auditors’ Reports are self-
explanatory and do not call for any further clarifications under section 134(3)(f) of the
Act.

Auditor

The Company at the Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on September 30, 2020 for
the Financial Year 2019-20 had appointed M/s M. K. Dandeker & Co, Chartered
Accountants, (Registration no. 000679S), Chennai as Statutory Auditors of the
Company to hold office until the conclusion of the AGM to be held during the year 2023.

Secretarial Auditor

M/s Balaji Rajan & Associates, Company Secretary in practice (CP No. 6965), was
appointed to conduct the secretarial audit of the Company for the financial year
2020-21, as required under Section 204 of the Act and Rules thereunder.

The secretarial audit report to the Shareholders for the financial year 2020-21 is

attached to this Report and is unqualified and has no adverse remark - ‘Annexure 3’.
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Cost auditor

M/s Srinivasan Damodaram & Associates, Cost Accountant (Membership No. 000825),
was appointed as Cost Auditor of the Company for audit of cost accounting records for
the financial year 2020-21, pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 of the Act and Rule
3 and 4 of the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Amendment Rules, 2014. The
Report of the Cost Auditors for the financial year 2020-21 would be filed with the Ministry
of Corporate Affairs (MCA) once the same is finalized. The cost audit report for the year
2019-20 was filed with MCA.

Details of Significant & Material Orders Passed by the Regulators or Courts or
Tribunals

No significant or material orders have been passed by the regulators or courts or
tribunals impacting the going concern status of the Company and the Company’s

operations in future.

Copy of Annual Return:

As per the provisions of Section 92(3) of the Act and Rule 12 of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 a copy of the Annual Return is available
at website Kudgi Transmission Limited | L&T Infrastructure Development Projects
Limited | L&T India (Intidpl.com).

Debenture Trustee

As at March 31, 2021, the total outstanding debentures allotted by the Company were
Rs.1409 crore. M/s IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited, having their office at Asian
Building, ground floor, 17, R. Kamani Marg, Ballard Estate, Mumbai 400001 were

appointed as the Debenture Trustee for the same.


https://www.lntidpl.com/businesses/power-transmission-lines/operational-projects/kudgi-transmission-limited/
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Acknowledgement

The Board of Directors wish to express their appreciation to all the employees for their
outstanding contribution to the operations of the Company during the year. Your
Directors take this opportunity to thank financial institutions, banks, Central and State
Government authorities, regulatory authorities, stock exchanges and all the

stakeholders for their continued co-operation and support to the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board

Pramod Sushila Kapoor P.G. Suresh Kumar
Date: 15.04.2021 Director Director
Place: Chennai DIN: 02914307 DIN: 07124883
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FORM NO. AOC.2
Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with

related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including
certain arms-length transactions under the third proviso thereto

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014)

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis
The Company has not entered into such transactions during the year.

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length basis

a. There were no contracts or arrangements entered into by the Company with related party(s)
during the FY 2020 — 21 which required shareholders’ approval as per Sec. 188(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013.

b. The details of related party transactions during the FY 2020 — 21 form part of the financial

statements as per Ind AS 24 and the same is given in Note.

For and on behalf of the Board

Pramod Sushila Kapoor P.G. Suresh Kumar
Date: 15.04.2021 Director Director
Place: Chennai DIN: 02914307 DIN: 07124883
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES

a. Amount to be spent on CSR:

Annexure 2

Particulars

Amount in Rs

Average Net Profit of the Company for the last three financial years
Amount to be spent as CSR during the year

Amount carried forward from earlier years
Amount spent during the year
Amount unspent aggregating

57,03,48,554
1,14,06,791
50,62,389
1,47,11,238
17,58,122

The CSR committee confirms that the implementation and monitoring of the CSR policy is in compliance

with the CSR objectives and policy of the Company.

b. Manner in which amount spent during the financial year:

Projects Amount A ¢ c lati A t
Sector in /Programs: outlay moun umulative moun
CSR - spent on the | spend upto | spent (Direct
. L which the (budget) .
project/activity Proi . ; project / the /
. o roject is vill / project / . . .
identified covered llage roqram programs reporting implementing
State prog Sub-heads: period agency)
wise
Construction of | ¢y, ion | Mysandral | oq 50 516 | 2951516 | 2951516 Direct
School Building Karnataka
Construction of Kanasandra
Overhead Water Social . .
Tank 50000 Ltr Welfare Village / 21,50,111 21,50,081 21,50,081 Direct
Karnataka
Cap.
Construction of Vajarahall
Overhead Water Social : .
Tank 50000 Ltr Welfare Village / 21,54,603 21,54,586 21,54,586 Direct
Karnataka
Cap.
Construction of
two classroom Yellamma
Building with 1 g4, o | Budihal 28,32,386 | 28,32,386 | 2832386 Direct
corridor with Village /
two number Karnataka
toilets
Construction of
t\ggifdl?nsswﬁ? Burudukunte
Jing Wi Education Village / 28,59,853 28,59,853 28,59,853 Direct
corridor with
Karnataka
two number
toilets
COVID related
Cl\s/lzrljtshuipEpeI():/oOf Social Tumkur
District/ 7,08,059 7,04,872 7,04,872 Direct
Ambulance for welfare
S . Karnataka
District Hospital
Tumkur
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Projects Amount A ¢ c lati A ‘
Sector in | /Programs: outlay moun umutative moun
CSR . spent on the | spend upto | spent (Direct
) L which the (budget) .
project/activity . . : project / the /
. S Project is Village / project / . . .
identified covered llag rogram programs reporting implementing
State prog Sub-heads: period agency)
wise
COVID related
CSR - Supply of
Medical Social Tumkur
Equipment’s for District/ 16,64,320 16,64,320 16,64,320 Direct
o welfare
3 Districts Karnataka
Hospitals for
COVID treatment
COVID related
CSR - Supply of
Medical Social Tumkur
Equipment’s for welfare District/ 20,32,329 20,32,329 20,32,329 Direct
4 Districts Karnataka
Hospitals for
COVID treatment

Date: 15.04.2021

Place: Chennai

For and on behalf of the Board

P.G. Suresh Kumar
Director
DIN: 07124883

Pramod Sushila Kapoor
Director
DIN: 02914307
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FormNo.MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
For the Financial Year 2020 - 21
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To

The Members,

KUDGI TRANSMISSION LIMITED,
Chennai.

| have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and
the adherence to good corporate practices by M/s. KUDGI TRANSMISSION LIMITED (CIN
U40106TN2012PLC111122) (hereinafter called the company). Secretarial Audit was conducted
in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory
compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.
Based on my verification of M/s. KUDGI TRANSMISSION LIMITED books, papers, minute
books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the
information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during
the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion , the company has , during
the audit period covering the financial year ended 31% March 2021, complied with the statutory
provisions listed thereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and
compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made
hereinafter:
| have examined the books, paper, minute books, forms and returns filed other records
maintained by M/s. KUDGI TRANSMISSION LIMITED (“the Company”) for the Financial
Year ended on 31 March 2021 according to the provisions of:

i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;

i) The National Highways Authority of India Act, 1988.
iii) The Company has complied with the provisions of Securities Exchange of Board of India
(Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements), 2015 and it has published half year

financial results in the newspaper.
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The Company is a Debt Listed Closely held Public Limited Company and hence compliance
under the Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of
India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’) via:

I.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015 ;

ii. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2009

iii.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines , 1999;

iv.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2009 and

v.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998

-are not applicable to this Company.

| have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the Secretarial Standards issued
by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India and during the period under review the company
has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc as
mentioned above.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,

Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. as mentioned above.

Further that the management of the Company as informed that all the Related Party Transactions
entered by the Company during the period under review have been entered at Arm’s Length Basis
and in the Ordinary Course of Business and therefore, compliance of provisions of Companies

Act, 2013 in respect of any of these transactions do not arise.

| further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is constituted with Executive
Directors and Non-Executive Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of
Directors that took place during the periods under reviews were carried out in compliance with
the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all the Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed

notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and
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obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for
meaningful participation at the meeting.

In respect of resolution passed in circulation the company followed a healthy system of
circulating the detailed agenda to all the Directors in a single file system, followed by placing
the concerned agenda in the subsequent meeting.

A review of the minutes of the Board meetings held during the year indicate that wherever
required detailed deliberations were carried out in respect of all the agenda items that were
required to be so carried out and there were no dissenting views in respect of any of the items.

| further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate
with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

I further report that during the period under review and as on the date of my report, the Board
of Directors of the Company has approved the resignation of Mr. Anaparthi Lakshmi Narayana

Varma from the position of Chief Financial Officer of the Company w.e.f. 10/01/2021.

I further report that my audit was subjected only to verifying adequacy of systems and
procedures that are in place for ensuring proper compliances by the Company and | am not

responsible for any lapses in those compliances on the part of the Company.

Place: Chennai
Date: 15/04/2021
UDIN: F006470C000151450

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and
forms an integral part of this report.
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Annexure A

The Members,
KUDGI TRANSMISSION LIMITED,
Chennai.

Our report of even date, it is to be read along with this supplementary testimony:

a)

b)

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the Management of the
Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Secretarial Record based
on our audit

We have followed the audit practices and processes that were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The
verification was done on a test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in Secretarial
records. We believe that the processes and practices we followed provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books
of Accounts of the Company.

Wherever required, we have obtained Management representation about the compliance
of laws, rules and regulation and happenings of events etc.

The Compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules and
regulation, standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited
to the verification of procedures on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor
of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management conducted the affairs of the
Company.

Place: Chennai
Date: 15/04/2021

UDIN: FO06470C000151450
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Chartered Accountants

Phone : +91-44-43514233 No.185 (Old No.100) 2nd Floor,
E-mail : admin@mkdandeker.com Poonamallee High Road,
Web : www.mkdandeker.com Kilpauk, CHENNAI - 600 010,

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Members of M/s. Kudgi Transmission Limited
Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the Ind AS financial statements of Kudgi Transmission Limited {“the Company”), which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, the Statement of Profit and Loss {including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the Ind AS financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards (“Ind AS”') prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended and cther accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the
state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021, and profit, changes in equity and its cash flows for
the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Qur responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the Ind AS financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the ICAlI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the ind AS financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our
audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the Ind AS financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined that there are no Key Audit Matters to communicate in our report.
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Information Other than the Ind AS Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including Annexures to Board's
Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the Ind AS financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether other information is materially inconsistent with the Ind
AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) the Act with
respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows
of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the Ind AS financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these Ind AS financial statements.

#1B5, {Old No. 100},
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls refevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

s Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Ind AS financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i)
planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and {ii) to evaluate the
effect of any identified misstatements in the Ind AS financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in
the ‘Annexure A’ a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent
applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 4 of the Companies {Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015.

) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2021 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2021 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its Ind AS
financial statements — Refer Note ‘F' to the Ind AS financial statements,

£185, (Old No.10g),

2nd FLL R, .*

Pocmma v
J A
NNAF-E00 010,

Page 4 of 9




ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

For M.K. Dandeker & Co.,

{ICAl Regn. No. 0006795}
Date:  April 15, 2021 R. Arun Kumar Mehta
Partner
Place: Chennai 1185, [Cld No.100), Chartered Accountants

2nd FLOOR,

UDIN: 21227630AAAANIBE74 Membership No. 227630

KILPAUK,
CHENNA! - 800 010,
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ANNEXURE - A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

{Referred to in our Report of even date)

1. a. The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of fixed assets.

b. The Fixed Assets have been physically verified by the Management at regular Intervals and no
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

¢. The title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the Company.

2. The Company is engaged in the business of infrastructure development and maintenance and hence
clause 3 {ii) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order 2016 relating to inventory is not applicable.

w

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans,
secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in
the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013.

4. The Company has not entered into any transactions in respect of loans, investments, guarantees and
securities, which attracts provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.Therfore, the
paragraph 3(iv} of Companies (Auditor’s Report) order 2016 is not applicable to the Company.

5. The Company has not accepted deposits and the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and
the provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act and the
rules framed there under are not applicable to the Company.

6. The Company is maintaining the cost records as specified by the Central Government under sub-
section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act in respect of services carried out by the Company.

~

a. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, goods
and services Tax, cess and any other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities.

b. According to the information and explanation given to us, the details of statutory dues which have
not been deposited as on March 31, 2021 on account of disputes are given below:

Particulars Period to which F-orum u:uhere t.he Amount (In %)
amount relates dispute is pending

Income Tax AY.2017-18 CIT {Appeals) 44,19,994

Income Tax AY.2018-19 CIT {Appeal) 3,58,51,792

8. The Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to debenture holders and the Company has no
loans or borrowings from financial institution, bank or Government.
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9. The Company has not taken any term loans or raised any money by way of initial public offer or further
Public offer during the year.

10, Based on the information and explanation given to us, no material fraud by the Company or any fraud
on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reporied during the year.

11. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the managerial remuneration has been paid or provided in accordance with
the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the
Companies Act, 2013.

12. The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence clause3 (xii) of the Companies {Auditor’s Report)
Order 2016 is not applicable.

13. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177
and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details of such transactions have been
disclosed in the Ind AS financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

14. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement
of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year.

15. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors
or persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv} of the Order is not applicable.

16. The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934,

For M.K. Dandeker & Co.,
(ICAI Regn. No. 000679S)

Yirwase busbda™

Date:  April 15,2021 pNDEKER R. Arun Kumar Mehta
$_0 & D
185, {Cld No.100), Partner
* 2nd FLOOR,

Chartered Accountants
Membership No. 227630

Place: Chennai n

UDIN: 21227630AAAANIS874

o | POONAMALLEE HIGH AOAD,
5 KILPAUK,
CHENNAI - 600 010,
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ANNEXURE - B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
(Referred to in our Report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause {i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Kudgi Transmission Limited
{“the Company”) as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of
the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financlal controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the institute of Chartered Accountants of india (the “Guidance
Note”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company'’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to
an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's interna! financia! control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Ind AS financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of Ind AS financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the Ind AS financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

For M. K. Dandeker & Co.,
(ICAl Regn. No. 0006795}

Date:  April 15, 2021 . Arun Kumar Mehta

EKE
. R g Co Partner
. 185, (Old No.100),
Place: Chennai 2nd FLOOR, Chartered Accountants
PCONAMALLEE HIGH ROAD,
UDIN: 21227630AAAANJ8874 KILPALK, Membership No. 227630

CHENNA! - 600 010,
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Kudgi Transmission Limited
CIN : U406 TNZM2PLC111122
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021

Particulars Note Ne. As at Mar;h 31,2021 As at Mar;_h 31, 2020
ASSETS
Non-current assets
1) Praperty, Plant and Equipment 1 8,65,07,566 9,14,33,558
b} Financial Assets
) Loans 2 59,000 50,000
ii) Other financial assets 3 15,02,24,55,446 15,30,44,82,392
¢) Other non-current assels 4 £,62,614 1,355,024
A 15,10,91,75,626 15,39,61,21,014
Current assets
a) Financial Assets
i} Investments [ 24,22.66,792 2,07,90,00,522
it) Cash and bank balances 7 3,82,86,89,804 2,28,02.66,690
ui) Other bank balanees 8 78,61,72,167 -
iv) Loans 2 B 1,32,000
b) Current Tax Assets (net) 5 6,58,06,539 6,00,44,973
¢) Other current assets 4 2,30,10,166 2,24,50,177
B 4,94,59,45,468 4,44,18,94,362
TOTAL A+B 20505551521@94 19,53,80,15,376
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
a) Equity Share Capital 2 1,92,60,00,000 1,92,60,00,000
1) Other Equity 10 2,81,56,42,551 2,19,97,11,568
C 4,74,16,42,551 4,12,57,11,568
LIABILITIES
Non-current liahilities
a) Financial liabilitics
1) Borrowings 11 13,65,39,52,055 14,05,60.42.672
it) Other financial liabilities 15 3,00,000 3,00,000
b) Provisions 12 4,03,612 4,6%,111
¢} Other non-cwrrent liabilities 13 3,15,364 3,15,364
D 13,65,49,71,031 14,05,71,27,147
Current liabilities
a) Financial liabilities
i) Trade payables 14
a) Total Outstanding dues to micro
and small enterprises 61,02,374 1,43,95,806
b) Other than micre and small enterprises 61,21,739 1,78,70,878
ii) Other financiat liabilities 5 1,63,56,53,469 1,60,66,57,546
b) Oher current liabilities 13 1,03,52,736 1,59,76,372
c} Provisions 12 2,771,194 2,176,059
1,65,85,07,512 1,65,51,76,661
Total Equity and Liabilities CHDHE 20,05,51,21,084 19,83,80,15,376
Contingent liabilitics F
Commitments G
Orther notes formming part of agcounts H
Significant accounting policies 1
As per our teport attached
For M.K.Dandeker & Co. For and on hefialf of the Board,
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Reg No.0006795)
by the hand of
P $’Kapoor

D Aue ottt N

R. Arun Kumar Mehta
Partner
Membership No. 227630

Place: Chennai
Drate: April 15, 2021

Dlrecl.or
(DIN: 07124883}

Director
(DIN: 02914307)

P

R.G.Yamachandran
Company Secretary

Place: Chennai
Date: Apnl 15, 2021

“, (om No.100)
20d FLOOR,

i KILPALK,
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Kudgi Transmission Limited
CIN : U40106TN2012PLC111122
Statement of Profit and loss for the year ended March 31,2021

Note  Year Ended March 31, 2021

Year Ended March 31, 2020

Particulars No. 7 ¥
REVENUE
Revenue from Operations 16 1,88,77,72,514 1,93,51,68,073
Other income 17 22.70,45,171 25,52,98,302
Total Income 2,11,48,17,685 2,19,04,66,375
EXPENSES
Operating expenses 18 12,56,45,875 13,97,44,551
Employee benefits expenses 19 94,47,077 1,22,53,686
Finance cost 20 1,31,91,42.270 1,35,19,40,808
Depreciation and atnortisation 1 49,26,032 29,21,071
Other expenses 21 3,57.87.871 4,33,29,815
Total Expenses 1,49,89,49,125 1,55,01,89,931
Profit/(loss) before tax 61,58,68,560 64,02,76,444
Tax Expenses:

- Current tax pertaining to prior year - 1,10,90,362
Profit/(loss) after fax 61,58,68,560 62,91,86,082
Other Comprehensive Income

i) Trems that will not be reclassified to profit or (loss) (net of tax}

- Remeasuremenits of the defined benefit plans 62,423 (1,16,299)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 61,59,30,983 62,90,69,783
Earnings per equity share (Basic and Diluted} H(%9) 320 3.27
Face value per equity share 10.00 10.00
Other notes forming part of accounts H
Significant accounting policies H
As per our report attached
For M.K.Dandeker & Co. of the Board,

Chartered Accountants
(Firm Reg.No.0006798)
by the hand of

G
@M L;/.u.mﬂ buah ™ \\g};ﬁ%{nmw)

R. Arun Kumar Mehta
Partner
Membership No, 227630

Place: Chennai
Date: April 15, 2021

P 8 Kapoor
Director

(DIN: 02914307)

n

R.G.Ramachandran
Company Secretary

Place: Chennai

Date: April 15,2021




Kudgi Transmission Limited
CIN : U40106TN2612PLC111122
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2021

Year Ended March 31,

Year Ended March 31,

Net Income tax (paid)/refinds

Net Cashiused in)/generated from Operating Activities

B |Cash flow from investing activities

Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment

Proceeds from Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment
Redemption / (Investreent) n Fixed deposits
(Purchase)/Sale of current nvestments (net)
Interest received

Net cash {(used in)/generated from investing activities

C  [Cash flow from financing activities

(57,61,566)

S.Ne, Particulars 2021 2020
¥ 4
A [Cash flow from operating activities
Net profit / {loss) hefore tax 61,58,68,560 64,02,76,441
Adjustments for:
Interest expenses 1,31,91,42270 1,35,19,40,808
Interest income from banks (16,79,90,074) {5,84,04,586)
Depreciation and amortisation 4926032 29,21,072
Profit on sale of lnvestmenis (87,14,72) (12,89,78,027)
{Profit) / loss on fisancial instruments designated at FVTPL {1,65,170) 31,05,742
Other Comprehensive Income 62,423 (1,16,299)
Loss on sale of Assets - 30,849
Operating profit before working capital changes 1,76,31,29,319 1,81,07,76,000
Adjustments for:
Increase / (decrease) in long tenm provisions (65,499) 2,21,009
Increase / [decrease} in trade payables (2,00,42,571} (1,61,07,639)
Increase / (decrease) in other current liabilittes (56,23,636) 54,65,354
Increase / (decrease} in short tern provisions 1,135 162,672
(Increase) / decrease in loans ,32,000 203,400
(Increase) / decrease in other non-current assets (7,590) 2,38,032
(Increase) / decrease in other financial asseis 28,16,58,179 33,87,83,027
(Increase) / decrease in other current assets (5,59,989) (59.11,073)
Net cash generated from/{used in) operating activities 2,01,86,21,348 2,13,38,30,782

(7.69.95.173)

2,01,28,59,782

2,05,68,35,609

(78,61,72,16T)
1,84,56,13,622
16,79,90,074

(2,79,54.563)

{30,849)
1,01,72,77.533
81.77,97,865
5,84,04,586

1,22,74,31,52%

1,86,54,94,572

Significant accounting policies

1

Repayment of long term borrowings (36,00,00,000) (32,00,00,000)

Interest paid (1,33,18,68,197) (1,34,86,93 288)
Net cash (used in)/generated from finaneing activities (1,69,18,68,197) (1,66,86,93,288)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalenis (A+B+C) 1,54,84,23,114 2,25,36,36,893
Cash and cash equivalents as at the begiming of the year 2,28,02,66,690 2,66,29,797
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year 3,82,86,89,804 2,28,02,66,690
Other notes forming part of accounts H

Components of Cash & Cash Equivalents:

S.No. |Particalars

Year Ended March 31,

Year Ended March 31,

D o Toar Hossnase Il

R. Arun Kumar Mehta
Partner
Membership No. 227630

P.G:Sures
ector
IN: #7124883)

2021 2020
1 |Balances with banks:
- In Trust retention and escrow accounts 7,49,14,246 36,35,952
= In current accounts 1,06,933 1,16,132
= Term deposits with ariginal maturity of less than 3 months (including 3,75,36,68,625 2,27,65,14,606
interest accrued thereon)
3,82,86,89,804 2,28,02,66,690
Naotes:
1. Cash flow statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Mathod' as set ont in the Ind AS 7 - Cash Flow statements.
2. Cash and cash equivalents represent cash and bank balances.
3. Previous year's fizures have been regrouped/reclassified wherever applicable.
As per our report atlached
For M.K.Dandeker & Co, For and on Behalf #f the Board,
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Reg. No.0006798)
by the hand of
mar P S Kapoor

Director
(DIN: 02514307)

P
:&madﬂndraﬂ

Company Secretary

Place: Chennai
Date: April 15, 2021

Place: Chennai /f‘ ot l 2nd FLOOR,
Date: April 15, 2021 (O | POOMAMALLEE HIG
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Kudgi Transmission Limited
CiIN : V40106 TN20L2PLC111122
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended As at March 31, 2021

a) Equity Share Capital

As at March 31, 2021

(Amount in Rs.)

Balance as at April 01, 2020 Changes in quulty share capital Balance as at March 31, 2021
during the year
No of shares ¥ Noofshares L4 No of shares ¥
19.26,00,000 1,92,60,00,000 - - 19,26,00,000 1,92,60,00,000
As at March 31, 2020
Balance as at April 01, 2019 Changes in -eqmty ey el Balance as at March 31, 2020
during the year
No of shares #  No of shares ¥ No of shares ¥
19,26.,00,000 1,92,60,00,000 - - 19,26.00.000 1,92,60,00,000
b) Other Equity
As at March 31, 2021
Reserves & Surplus
Particulars Debenture Retained : Total
Redemption Reserve FrneCsamnE
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,00,05,68,034 £,19,91,43534 2,19,97,11,568
Profit for the vear - 61,58,68,560 61,58,68,560
Other Comprehensive Income for the year - 62,423 62,423
Balance ai the end of the year 1,00,05,68,034 1,81,50,74,517 2,81,56,42,551
As at March 31, 2020
Reserves & Surplus
Particulars Debenture Retained earni Total
Red ion Reserve 5
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,08,05,68,034 57,00,73,751 1,57,06,41,785
Profit for the year - 62,91,86,082 62,91,86,082
Other Comprehensive Income for the year - {1,16,299) (1,16,299)
Balance at the end of the year 1,00,05,68,034 1,19,91,43,534 2,19,97,11,568
Otleer notes forming part of accounts H
Significant accounting policics 1
J/
As per owr report attached
For M.K.Dandeker & Co. For and on behalf of Board,
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Reg No.0006795)
by the hand of
P S Kapoor

R. Arun Knmar Mehta
Partner
Membership No. 227630

Place: Chennai
Date; Apnl 15, 2021

Director
(DIN: 02914307}

CompanySecretary

Place: Chermai
Date: April 15, 2021
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udgi Transmission Limited

‘otes part of fi ial for the year ended March 31, 2021 {Amount in Rs.]
Note: 1= Property, Plant and Equipment
Cost Depi [l Baok Value
Particulars As at - . Ag at Asat : As at As at As as
Aprilon,2000|  Addifions | Deductions |\ 5 2021 | Apritor, 2020 | Forteyear | Deduetions |y 30,2021 ] Mareh 31,2021 | March 31,2020
Drwoed
Freshold Lasd (Gujarat)* 12,63,000 = = 12,63,000 = = = = 12,63,000 12,63,000
Fresheld Land (Karnataka) 3,79,68,332 . - 3,79,68332 - R = E 19,68,332 3,79,68,332
Vehicles 640,264 - = 6,40,264 2,02,750 1,28,063 = 330,803 3,090,461 437,514
Buildings 5,07,91,900 - - 5,07,91,900 24,80,470 43,060,637 - 67,81,107 4,40,10,793 4,83,11,430
Air Conditioning & Refiigeration Equipment 13,12,817 - = 13,12,817 1,660,841 237,135 = 3.979% 9,14,841 11,51,97%
Fumniture & Fixtures 23,41,584 - N 23,41,584 142419 229174 - 3,71,593 19,69,991 21,99,165
Office Equipmenits 111470 - - 111,470 9,289 31,033 - 40,322 71,148 1,02,181
Total 944,219,367 - u 9,44.29,367 29.95,76% 4%,26,032 - T8 801 8,65,07,566 9,14,33,598
[Previous vear 3,98,74,396 54557771 - 944,290,367 74,687 29214072 - 29,95,76%8 2,14,33,598 -

* Frechold Land in the state of Gujarat is Merigaged for the Non-Convertible Debentures.
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{udgi Transmission Limited

Votes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

Note: 1{(a} - Property, Plant and Equipment

{Amount in Rs.)

Cost Depreciation Book Value
Particulars Az at . N As at As at N As at Asat Asas
April0y,zorg|  Additions Deductions |, cn 31,2020 | April o1, 2019 | Fortheyear | Deductions |0 5 o050 | March 31,2020 | Mareh 31,2018
Owned
Freehold Land (Guarat)* 12,63,000 - - 12,63,000 - - - - 12,63,000 12,63,000
Freehold Land (Kamataka) 3,79,68,332 - . 3,79,68,332 - - - - 3,79,68,332 3,79,68.332
Vehickes 6,40,264 - - 6,40,264 74,697 1,283,053 - 202,750 437514 5,65,567
Buildings - 5,07,91,900 - 5,07.91,900 - 24 80,470 - 24,280,470 4,83,11,430 -
Air Conditioning & Refrigeration Equipment - 13,12,817 . 13,12,317 = 1,60,841 = 1,60,84 11,51,976 -
Fumiture & Fixtures B 23,41,584 - 23,41,584 - 142,419 - 1,42,419 21,99,165 5
Office Equipments - 1,11,470 - 1,11,470 - 9,289 - 9,289 1,02,181 E
Total 3,98,71,596 545,57,771 = 9,44,29,367 74,697 29.21,072 - 29,95,769 0,14,33,598 3.97.96,399
Previous year 392,321,332 6,40,264 - 3,98,71,596 - 74,697 - 74,697 3,97,96,809 -
* Prechold Land in the state of Gujarat is Mortgage for #he Debantures,
Note: I{b) - Capital wark-in-progress
Capitalised
. As at - . ; As at
Parficulars April 01, 2019 Additiens during the Mareh 31, 2020
year
Buildings 2,66,03,208 - 2,66,03,208 -
Total 2,66,03,208 = 2,66,03,208 -
[Previets year 3,951,952 2,62 11,256 - 2,66,03,208

185, {Oid No.100),

2nd FLOOR,

O | POONAMALLEE Hi5




Kudgi Transmission Limited

Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 {Amount in Rs.}
Loans
. As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Particulars
Cuorrené Non-current Total Current Non-current Total
a) Secnrity deposits
- Unsecured, considered good - 50,000 50,000 1,32,000 50,000 1,82,000
- 50,800 50,000 1,352,000 50,000 1,82,080
Other fi ial assets
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Current Nen-current ‘Total Current Noo-current Total
a)} Lease receivable - 15,02,24,55,446 15,02,24,55,446 - 15,30,44,82,392 15,30,44,82,392
- 15,02,24,55,446 15,02,24,55,446 - 15,30,44,82,392 15,30,44,82,392
Other non-current and current assets
g As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
P 1
e Current Non-current Total Current Non-current Total
Advances other than capital advances
- Receivable from related party 5,910 - 5,910 - - -
- Gratuity Plan Asset (net of Provisions) 1,49,058 1,62,614 3,181,672 146,347 1,535,024 3,01,371
- Other receivables - - - 1,00,00¢ - 1,060,000
« Prepaid Insurance 2,28,55,198 - 2,28 55,198 2,22,03 830 - 2,22.03.830
2,30,10,166 1,62,614 2,31,72,780 2,24,80,177 1,55,024 2,26,05,201
Current Tax Assets (net)
icul As at March 31, 2021 As at Marck 31, 2020
Fartic Current Non-¢urrent ‘Total Current Non-current Total
Advance Tax (net of provisions) 6,58,06,539 - 6,58 06,539 5,00,44,973 - 6,00,44,973
6,58,06,539 - 6,58,06,539 6,00,44,973 - 6,00,44,973

#1885, (Old Mo.100),
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Kudgi Transmission Limited
Notes forming part of financial staiements for the year ended March 31, 2021
6 Investments

As at March 31, 2621 As at March 31, 2020
Particulars Quantity Current Quantity Current
Units ¥ Units ¥
Tmvestments at Tair vatue through Profit and loss
Quoted
Investment in liguid mutual fund umis 1,66,607 24,22,66,792 25,43,358 2,07,90,00,522
1,66,607 24,22,66,792 35,43,358 2,07,90,00,522

Agprepate amount of quoted invesiments

24,21,01,622

2,08,21,06,264

Aggregate amount of market value of sbave 24,22,66,792 2,07,90,00,522
Other Particulars in respect of investments:
sl 'I;::: eh 31 Martket Value Units Market Value
Particulars 2021 i As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2020
Nes, I Nos. ¥
UTI Ovesnight Fund - Growth = " 87,123 23.63,19,77C
HDFC Overnight Fund - Growth - - 35,428 10,46,84,973
Kotak Overnight Fund - Regular Growth 28,374.943 3,16,51,728 $,79,053 1,04,28,92 317
Tata Overnight Fund - Regular Growth - - 64,107 6,74,78,199
L&T Cash Fund - Growth 1,37,732.423 21,06,15,064 4,22,454 62,76,25,263
1,66,607 24,22,66,792 15,88,165 2,87,90,00,522
7 Cash apd bank balances
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 Az at March 31, 2020
Batances wilh banks
- In Trust retention and escrow accounts 7.49,14,246 36,35,952
- In current accounts 1,06,933 1,16,132
- Tt Term deposits with eriginal maturity of less than 3 months (including
interest acerued thereon) 3,75,36,68,625 2,27,65,14,606
3,82,86,89,804 2,28,02,66,690
§ Other Bank balances
'.l"erm deposits with original maturity of more than 3 months (including 286172167 )
interest accrued thereon) T
78,61,72,167 -
BANDEKERSS
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Kudgi Transmission Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 (Amount in Rs.}

9 Equity Share Capital

(i) Authorised, issued, subscribed and paid up

3 As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Particulars
No. of shares ¥ No. of shares T
Authorised
Equity shares of ¥ 10 each 19,50,00,000 1,95,00,00,000 19,50,00,000 1,95,00,00,000
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
Equity shares of T 10 each 19,26,00,000 1,92,60,00,000 19,26,00,000 1,92,60,00,000

(ii) Reconciliation of the number of equity shares and share capital issued, subscribed and paid-up:

Particalars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
No. of shares T No. of shares ¥
At the beginning of the year 19,26,00,000 1,92,60,00,000 19,26,00,000 1,92,60,00,00¢
Issued during the year as fully paid - = E =
At the end of the year 19,26,00,00{ 1,92,60,00,000 19,26,00,000 1,92,60,00,000

{iii) Terms / rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity share having a par value of ¥ 10 per share. Bach holder of equity shares is entitled
to cne vote per share.

The Company has not issued any securities during the year with the right/option to convert the same into equity shares at a
later date.

The Company has not reserved any shares for issue under options and contracis/commitments for the sale of
shares/disinvestment.

The shares issued carry equal rights to dividend declared by the company and no restrictions are attached to any specific
shateholder.

{iv) Dretails of Shares held by Holding Company:

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Particulars
No. of shares L4 No. of shares L4
D eSUHEITE) e vels prentiEpjests 192599998  192,5999980 192599998  1,92,59,99.980
Limited (Including nominee holding)
19,25,99.998  1,92,59,99.930 19,2599,998  1,92,59,99,980

(v} Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company:

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Particulars
No. of shares % No. of shares Y
L&T Infrastructure Development Projects
Limited (Including nominee holding) 19,25,99,998 99 99% 19,25,99,998 99.99%

{vi) Aggregate number of bonus shares issued, shares issucd for consideration other than cash and shares bought back during
the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date: Nil

{vii} Calls unpaid ; Nil; Forfeited Shares : Nil

\'\




Kudgi Transmission Limited

Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 (Amownt in Rs.)

10 Other Equity

As at March 31, 2421
Reserves & Surplus
Particulars Debenture B : Total
Redemption Reserve KctiinediCarmnes
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,00,05,68,034 1,19,91,43,534 2,19,97,11,568
Profit for the year - 61,58,68,560 61,58,68,560
Other Comprehensive Income for the year - 62,423 62,423
Balance at the end of the year 1,00,05,68,034 1,81,50,74,517 2!81!56,42,551
As at March 31, 2020
Reserves & Surplus
Particulars Debenture ined . Total
Redemption Reserve Re varmngs
Balance at the beginning of the year £,00,05,68,034 57,00,73,751 1,57,06,41,785
Profit for the year - 62,91 86,082 62,91,86,082
Other Comprehensive Income for the year (1,16,299) (1,16,299)
RBalance at the end of the year 1.00,05,68,034 1,19,91,43,534 2,19,97,11,568

“§185, (Old No.160),
2nd FLOOR,
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Kuedgi Transmission Limitcd

Notes forming part of finascial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
11 Borrowings
Particalars As at March 31, 2021 Ag at March 31, 2020
Current Non current Total Current Non corrent Total
Secured horrowings
a) Nou comvertibie debertures
[Refer note 11{a)] - 13.65,39,52,055 13,65,38.52,0355 - 14,05,60,42,672 £4.05,60,42,672
- 13653932055 13,65,39,52,055 - 14,05,60,42.672 14,05£0‘42.672
Note 11(z) : Betails of long term borrowings
(i) Details of Nan -~ Convertible Debentute - 1i is given in the below table (Filastive Inerest Rate @ 8.99%):
Particatars _ Terms of repayment _
Series Amount in T Rate of Enterest | Redemptlon Date
Noa C ible T 11 - Series "W" of 2006.17 L.04.00.00.000 9.50% 15-Apr-30
Non Convertible Debeatures 11 - Scries “V" of 2016-17 36,0H,00,000 5.50% 15-Apr-39
Non C ible Delx 11 - Series "U" of 2616-17 50,040,000 4.56% 25-Apr38
Nom C ihie D: 11 - Series "T" of 2016-17 L96,00,00,000 9.50% 25-Apr-37
Non Convertible Debertures It - Series "S" of 2016=17 L.01,60,60,000 9.50% 25-Ap-36
Non Deb 11 - Series “R” of 2016-17 93.60.60.000 0.50% 25-Apr-35
Man Convertible Debenhuoes IT- Series "Q" of 2016.17 §7,00,00,000 9.50% 215-Apr-34
Nan Ci ible D I - Seties *P" of 2046-17 8,00,00,G0% 9.50% 25-Apr-33
Nen Convertible Debentures IT - Series "0"™ of 2016=17 75,00,00,000 9.14% 25-Apr-33
Debentwres - 0 ‘Non Convertible Drebentures I1- Series "N™ of 201617 72,00,00,000 9.14% 25-Apr-31
‘Nons Convertibfe Diebentures IT - Series "M'™ of 201617 67,06,00.000 9.14% 25-Apr-30
Non £ IE - Serics "L of 2016-17 63,00,00,000 9.k4% 25-Apr-2%
Non C ible D B - Series "K' of 2056-17 59,00,06,000 9.14% 25-Api-28
[Noa Convertible Debentures 11 - Serjes "I of 2016-17 55,00,00,000 8.80% 25-Apr-27
[Non Converlible Debentures 1T - Series "I* of 2016-17 52.04,00,000 8.80% 25-Apr-26
Nan C ible Dy 11 - Series "H" of 2066-17 48,000,000 3,80% 15-Apr-25
Non C ible Deb 11 - Seties "G" of 2006-17 45,00,00,000 8.80% 25-Apr-24
Non Convertible Deb 11 - Series "F" of 2016-17 40,00,00,000 R.80% 25-Apr-23
Noo Converible D 11 - Serigs "B" of 2016417 40,80,00.000 £.50% 25-Apr-22

O | POONAMALLEE
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Kudgi Transmission Limited AR
Notes forming part of financial statements
Note 11(b): Nature of Security

(i) First ranking pari passu charge/ hypothecation on the movable assets of the Issuer. i.e. movable plant and machinery. spare>. Lol and accessories. furniture. fixtures, vehicles.
present and future. intangible, goodwill, intellectual property. present and future, vour ol the Debenture Trustee:

(i) First ranking pari passu charge/ mortgage on:

(a) Al the rights, title, interest. benefits, claims and dermands whatsoever ol the Issuer in the Project Documents and operation and maintenance related agreements which the
Issuer is party o, contractor guarantees, liquidated damages and all other contracts relating (o the project. duly acknowledged consented bythe relevant counter parties 0
such Project Documents;

(b) All the rights, title, interest, benefits. claims and demands whatsever of the Issuer in the clearances pertaining to the Project. both present and future;

(c) All the rights. title. interest, benefits, claims and demands whatsoever of the Issuer in letter of credit. guarantee, performance bond. corporate guarantee. bank guarantee
provided by any party to the Project Documents; and

(d) The insurance proceeds.

(e) All bank account(s) of the Issuer, including without limitation the Escrow Account (“Transaction Accounts™) and the monies lying to the credit thereol, (rom time 10 time;

(f) all book debts, receivables, issi revenues ol whats nature and wherever arising. ol the Issuer, present and future

(i) First ranking pari passu mortgage on the immovable property of the Issuer. present and fture, provided that land admeasuning 1732 5q t bearing plot number 64 situated at Sri Sai Gardens
comprised in Sy. Nos 21/1 and 2172 situated at Serkadu Road, No. 6. Walajabad Village. K Taluk, K District shall not be mortgaged and may be sold by the Issuer.

Note 11(c): Presentation of Borrowings in the Balance Sheet is as follows:

= As at March 31, | Asat March 31,
Particulars
e s B el _ 202 2020
Long term borrowings [Refer note 11] 13.65.39.52.055 | 14.05.60.42.672
Break up of other financial liabilitics:
B Asat March 31, | Asat March 31,
|TEE—— e ————— 2020 | 2020
Iterest accrued but not due on debentures [Refer note /5] 1273790011 1244426421
Current maturities of long term barrowings /Refer note 13] 36.00.00,000 36.00.00.000
12 Provisions
As ot March 31,2021 As at March 31,2020
Particulars Current Non current Total Current Non current Total
z
Provision for employce benefits
_ Leave Encashment “ 158,015 158015 - 116,026 116026
- Retention pay scheme 2.77.194 2.45.597 522,791 2.76.059 3,53.085 629,144
277,094 403612 680,806 2,76,059 469,111 745170
13 Other non current and current liabilities
As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Particulars Current Non current Curreat Non current Totat
e = — I S ? T . A—
1) Company owned car scheme . 315,364 305364 . 3.15.364 315364
ii) Liability for expenses 99.80.383 s 99.80.383 1.52.98.972 . 152.98.972
i) Statutory Liabilities 342,166 342166 6.77.400 . 6.77.400
w) Other Liabilities 30.187 . 0,187 . . :
L0356 3,15,364 71,06,68,100 159,767 1,62,91,736




Kuidgi Transmissien Limited

Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 (Amount inRs.)
14 Trade payables
Particolars As at March 31, 2021 Ap at March 31, 2020
i) Total Cutstanding dues to Micro and Sniall Enterprises 61,02,374 1,43,95206
i) Total Quistanding dues to Creditors other than
micee and small eoterprises
a) Dues 1o Related parties 43,129,572 1,47,88,703
b) Pues 10 Others 17,82,167 30,82,175
1,22.24,113 3,22.66.584
1% (ber financial liabilitics
: As at March 31, 2021 Ag at March 31, 2020
it
Eiréonlin Current Non current Total LCurrent Now current Tatal
2) Depuosits seceived - 3.,00,00¢ 3.60,000 - 300,000 300,060
b) Emterest accrwed but not dus of borrowings _
iRefer note TNt} 1,27,37.91,1iL 127,37,91,111 1.24,44.26421 1,24,44.26,421
¢ Chrrent maturities of fong term borrowings 36,00,00,000 = 36,00,00,000 36,00.00,000 - 16,00,00,000
[Refer note Lial}
) Liability for Capital Goods = o - 3.76,3%4 - 3,786,394
e} Other Payables 18,62,358 - 18.62,358 18.54,731 . 18.54,731
1,63,56,53,469 3,090,000 1,63,59,53,469 1,60,66,87 545 3,00,000 1,60,62,57 546
F Contingent Liabiitics
Deails of Conii Liabifitics are given below:
- As at March 31, 2021 Ag at March 31, 2024
Particola
B AY. Amott (Z) AY. Amount (2
2017-18 44,19.994 2017-18 44,159,994
e e o 201319 3.58,51,792 201819 5
Legal disputes Refer Nate H{11)}

G Commitments
(i) Estienzted amonm of conacts remaining fo be executed on capital accoure, awd not provided for (met of advarces) X Nil (Previoss year: £ Nil)

(i} ‘Otber Commitmends as at March 31, 2021 is ¥ Nil {Previous Year T Nii).

2ng FLOCR,
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Kudgi Trangmission Limited

Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 {Amonnt in Rs.)
16 Revenue from operations
Particulars Year Ended March 31, 2021 Year Ended March 31, 2020
Other operating revenue:
- Finance Income £,69,74,09,016 1,73,51,83.47%
- Revenne towards Operation and Maintenance 19,03,63,498 19,99,84,594
1,88,77,72,514 1,93,51,68,073
17  Other income
Particulars Year Ended March 31, 2021 Year Ended March 31, 2020
Interest income from bank deposits 16,79,90,074 5,84,04,586
Interest income from others 93,02,512 -
Surcharge 3,79.84,218 4,35,38,230
Net gain/(loss) on financial instruments designated at FYTPL 1,65,170 (31,05,742)
Profit on sale of Invesments 87,14,722 12,89,78,027
Profit{loss) on disposal of Assets - (30,849)
Mise. Income 28,88.475 2,75,14,050
22,70,45,171 25,52,98,302
18  Operating expenses
Particulars Year Ended March 31, 2021 Year Ended March 31, 2020
Security services 20,14,692 15,78,86%
Insurance 4,34 60,773 3,72.47.953
Opertion & maintenance of transmission Lines 7,96,09,407 8,64,96,091
Repairs - Plant & Machinery 1,41,641 13,50,003
Payment of rebate as per Transmission Service agrecment 44,19,362 1,30,71,636
12,%6,45,875 13,97,44,551
19  Employee beuefit expenses
Particulars Year Ended March 31, 2021 Year Ended March 31, 2028
Salaries, wages and bonus 78,92,402 81,40,368
Contributions to and provisions for:
- Provident fiund [Refer note H(3)} 3,69,564 3,83,693
- Gratuity 1,515,241 95,593
- Leve encashment 1,92,099 5,79,800
- Retention pay 1,74,627 411,956
8,51,531 i4,71,042
Staff welfare cxpenses 71,03,144 2642276
94,47.077 1,22,53,686
2 Finance Cost
Particulars Year Ended March 31, 2021 Year Ended March 31, 2620
Interest on:
- Redeermable Non-Convertible fixed rate Debentures 1,30,37.67,069 1,33,37,29,145
= Others - 2,606,042
Other borrowing cost 40,59 481 42,63,449
Unwinding of discount and implicit interest expense on fair value 1,12,75,72¢ 1,36,82,172
1,31,91,42,270 1,35,19,40,808
; I's)
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Kudgi Transmission Limited

Note 22(b): Details of Corporate social responsibility expenses

(i) The amount required to be spent by the Company on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR} related activities during the year is #1,14.06 971 /-

(previous year T91,35,500 /-)

(i) Amount approved by the board o be spent towards CSR activities during the year #1,62,82 389/-

Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 (Amount in Rs.}
21 Other expenses
Particulars Year Ended March 31, 2021 Year Ended March 31, 2020
Rent, Rates and taxes 22,74 461 25,34,252
Professional fees 1,35,54,567 24419230
Payments to auditor [Refer Note 22(a)] 7,20,174 7,11,539
Postage and communication 3,79,221 423,208
Printing and stationery 2,112,958 4,54,106
Power & Fuel 3,82,552 237076
Travelling and conveyance £0,32,737 23,73,436
Barnk Charges 1,315 37.629
Repairs and Maintenance - Others 19,16,482 13,58,847
Corporate Social Responisbility fRefer Note 22(bj] 1.47,11,238 B1,77,099
Advertisement expenses 1,27,781 15,98,334
Miscellaneous expenses 4,74,385 10,05,059
3,57,87,871 4,33,29,815
Note 22(a): Payments to auditor (including GST) are as follows:
. Year Ended March 31, Year Ended
. 2021 March 31, 2020
a) As Auditor 2,59,600 2,59,600
b} For Taxation matters 59,000 59.000
b} For Other Services 401,574 3,92 939
Total 1,20,174 7,11,539

(iii) Contributions to a trust/seciety/section 8 Company controlled by the Company in relation to CSR activities during the year Nil {previous year INil)

(iv) The details of amount recognized as expense in the Statement of Profit or Loss under Nete No. 22 above on CSR related activites is given below:

Particulars Paid in cash Not paid in cash Total
Amount spent during the year ended on March 31, 2021:
i} Construction/acquisition of any asset 57.95,275 45,14 441 1,03,09,716
i) On purposes other than (i) above 44,0§,522 - 44,01,522
1,01,96,797 45,14,441 1,47,11,238
Amount spent during the year ended on March 31, 2020:
i} Construction/acquisition of any asset 81,77,099 - 81,77,099
i) On purposes other than {i) above - . -
31,77,09% - 81,77,099

{v) Details of Unspent CSR expenditure as at March 31, 2021:

Particulars Amount in ¥
Opening Balance 50,62,389
Amount required to be spent during the year 1,14,06,971
Amount spent duting the year 1,47,11,238
Closing Balance 17,58,122
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Kudgi Transwmission Limited
H) Other Notes forming part of the financial statements {Amount in Rs.)

1 Corporate Information

Kudgi Transmission Limited was incorporated on November 27, 2012 under the Companies Act 1956 as a wholly owned subsidiary of M/s. REC
Transmission Projects Company Limited (REC TPCL) a5 a Special Purpose Vehicle Company to develop transmission system (Project) required for
evacuation of power from NTPC Kudgi TPS (3X800 MW in Phase-I), The certificate of commencement of business was issued on Janunary 11, 2013,
M/s. REC TPCL has floated a bid on Build Own Operatc and Maintain (BOOM) basis for selection of Transmission Service Provider for the above
said project and M/s. L&T Infrastructure Development Projects Limited (L&T IDPL) was the successful bidder, Accordingly, the Company was
acquired by L&T IDPL from REC TPCL or August 30, 2013 (effective date). The project is for 35 years fiom the Scheduled Commercial Operation
Date, The Company comunenced cperations of project on September 24, 2016,

The Company has not eamed any income/incurred any expenditure in foreign currency during the year. (previous vear: ¥ Nil)
Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 19 "Employee benefits":
(i) Defined contribution plan:

The Company’s provident find and super annuation fund are the defined contribution plans, The Company is required to contribute a specified
percentage of payroll costs to the recognised provident fund and Life Insurance Cotporation of India respectively to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Company with respect to these plans is to make the specified contributions.

An amount of ¥ 3,69,564/- {previous year :¥ 3,83,693/) being contribution made to recognised provident fund is recognised as expense and
inchrded under Emplovee benefit exp in the § of Profit and loss (Refer Note 19)

(ii) Defined benefit plans;
a)  Characteristics of its defined benefit plans and risks associated with them :
Giratuity:

The Company operates gratuity plan through LIC's Group Gratuity scheme where every employee is entitled to the benefit equivalent to fifteen
days salary last drawn for each completed year of service. The same is payable on termination of service or retirement whichever is earlier. The
benefit vests after five years of continuous service.

The benefit is governed by the Payment of Gratwity Act, 1972, The Key features are as under:

Features of the defined benefit plan Remarks
Benefit offered 15 / 26  Salary x Duration of Service
Salary definitton Basic Salary including Dearness Allowance {if any)
Benefit ceiling Benefit ceiling of ¥ 20,00,000 was not applied
'Vesting conditions 5 years of contimuious service { Not applicable in case of death / disability )
Benefit eligibili Upon Death or Resignation / Withdrawal or Retirement
Retirement age 58 years
Leave Encashment:

Features of the defined benefit plan Remarks
Salary for Encashment Basic Salary
Salary for Availment Cost to company
Benefit event Death or Resignation or Retirement or Availment
Maximum accumulation 300 days
Benefit Formula {Leave Days) = (Salary)/ {Leave Denominator)
Leave Denaminator Employee | 30
Leaves Credited Annually Employee [ 33
Retirement Age 58 Yearg

The Conpany is responsible for governance of the plan.
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Kudpi Transmisgion Limited
H) Other Notes forming part of the financial statements

b)

€)

)

{Amount in Rs.}
The recognised in Bal Sheet are as follows:
Gratuity plan Comyp ted absences
Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31, | As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2021 2020 2021 2024
Present value of defined benefit obligation
- Wholly funded 841427 7,19,370 9,28,642 7,26,43]
- Wholly wnfinded - = = =
841,427 7,19,370 9,28,642 7,26,431
Less : Fair value of plan assets £1,53,099 10,20,741 7,70,627 6,10,405
Net Liabilicy / (Asset) (3,11,672) (3,01,371) 1,58,015 1,16,026
The ts recognised in the 5 t of Profit and loss are as follows:
Gratuity plan Comp d ab €s
Particulars As at March 31, | AsatMarch 31, | As at March 31, | As at March 31,

2021 2020 2021 2020
1 Current service cost 1,41,0689 1,30,188 4,12.706 406,191
2 Interest on Defined benefit obligation (25,848) (34,595) 19,636 24,845
3 Expected return on plan assets - - - -
4  Past service cost - - - -
5 Actuarial {gain}/loss niet recognised in books - - (2,66,701) (1,85,985)
Total(1te 5) 115241 95,593 1,65,641 2,45,051
[ Amount included in "employee benefit expenses” [,15241 95,593 1,65,641 2,45,051
I _Amount included as part of "finance costs” - - - -
Total (I +11) 1,15.241 95,593 1,65,641 2,45,051
Actual refurn on plan assets - B - -

The changes in the present vatue of defined benefit obligation representing reconciliation of opening and closing halances thereof are as

follows:

Particulars

Gratuity plan

Compensated absences

As at March 31, | Asat March 31, | As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2021 2020 2021 2020

Opening balance of the present value of defined benefit
lobligation 7,19,371 500472 7.26,431 5,88,565
Add:  Current service cost 1,41.089 1,30,188 4,12,706 406,191
Add: Interest cost 47 837 34,865 64,943 61,398
Add/fless): Actuarial losses/(gains):

Due to Change in financial assumptions 29,802 9,980 - -

Due to change in demographic assumption - {119) - -

Duue 1o experience adjustments (96,671) 1,28,187 {99,033) 97,128
Less:  Benefits paid g (84,202) (1,76, 405) (4,26,851)
Add: Past service cost - - - -
('ilfi.smg- balance of the present value of defined benefit 841,428 719,371 928,642 726,431




Kudgi Transmissien Limited
H) Other Notes forming part of the finzocial statements

-

3

h}

(Amount in Rs.)

¢) The changes in the fair value of plan assets representing reconciliation of opening and closing bal thereof are as follows:
Gratuity plan Compensated ahsences
Particulars As st March 31, | Asat March 31, | As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2021 2020 2021 2020
Opening balance of fair value of plan assets 10,20,741 9,19,233 6,10,405 444,264
Interest iIncome 73,685 69,460 34,606 27,150
Add: Expected return on plan asgets {4,446) 21,749 - -
| Add/{less): Actuarial losses/(gains) - - 1,964 2,693
Add:  Contribution by employer 63,119 94,501 1,23,652 1,36,298
Less:  Benefits paid - (84,202) - -
Closing balance of fair value of plan assets 11,53,099 10,260,741 7,780,627 6,10,405
Principal actuarial I at the Bal Sheet date:
. As at March 31, | AsatMarch 31,
SRISCRS 22 2020
1}  Discount rate 6.50% 5.95%
2) Salaty growth rate 6.00% 6.00%
15% at young ages | 15% at young ages
3) Aumition rate reducing to 3% at | reducing to 3% at
older ages older ages
Expected cashflows based on past service Eability:
Particnlars Cash flows Distril
Year-1 75,168 4.80%
Year-2 72,341 4.60%
Year-3 69,703 4.40%
Year-4 69,468 4.40%
Year-5 65,779 4.20%
Year-b to 10 3,52,263 22.30%
The Expected contribution for the next year is Rs.1,49,057.
A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at March 31, 2021 and as at March 31, 2020:
As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Change in A
Assumptions Impact on Defined Benefit Obligation Impact on Defined Benefit
Particulars (Gratuity) Obligation  (Gratuity)
ln:“re:::l Increase/(Decrease) in Assumptions | Increase/(Decrease) in Assumptions
% Yo Yo
Discount Rate 0.50% 8,08,424 -3.92% 6,94,918 -3.40%
-0.50% 8,76,772 4.20% 745,557 3.64%
0,
Salary Growth Rate 0.50% 876,772 4.20% 745,672 3.66%
-0.50% 8,08,124 -3.96% 6,94,594 -3.44%
The major categories of plan assets of the fair value of the total plan assets are as follows :
Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31,
021 2020
Insurer managed funds 100% 100%
Investments quoted in active markets - -
Cash and cash equivalents - -
Unquoted investments - -
Total 100% 100%

Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 23 "Borrowing Costs”

Borrowing cost capitalized during the year Z Nil. {previous year :¥ Nil),
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Kudgi Transmission Limited

H) Other Notes forming part of the financinl statements {Amount in Rs.)
5 Disclosure of seg information pursuant to Ind AS 108 "Operating Segments”
The Company is engaged in the busi of construction, operation and maintenance of Transmission Lines on a Build Owm

Qperate Maintain (BOOM) basis in a single business segment. Hence repuorting of operating sepments does not arise. The
Caompany does not have operations outside India. Hence, disclosure of geographical segment imformation does not arise.

6 Disclosure of related parties / velated party transactions pursuant to Ind AS 24 "Related Party Disclosures”

a)} List of related parties
Uitimate Holding Company: Larsen & Toubro Limnited
Holding Company: L&T Infrastructure Development Prajects I imited
Fellow Subsidiary:
L&T Chennai - Tada Tollway Limited
Key Management Personnel;

Mr.Pramod Sushila Kapoor - Director

Mr.P G Suresh Kumar - Director

Dr.Koshy Varghese - Independent Director
Mz.Samyuktha Surendran - Woman Director
Mr. R.G. Ramachandran - Compary Secretary
Mr. Ajithkumar K. - CFQ

Mr.Ojes Cheriyan Madappattu - Manager

b) Disclosure of related party transactions:

Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
1 Purchase of goads and services incl, taxes
Ultimate Holding Company
Larsen & Toubro Limited 51,46,123 6284123
Holding Conpany
L&T Infrastructure Develcpment Projects Limited 4.79,45,796 4,79.45,086
5,30,91,919 5,42,29,269
1 Reimk t of exp charged from
Ultimate Heolding Company
Larsen & Towbro Limited 4,65,422 12,72.401
Holding Company
L&T Infrastructure Development Projects Limited 114,197 1,14,965
5,79,619 13.87,366
3 Compensation to Key Management Personnel
a) Sitting Fees
Mr. Koshy Varghese - Independent Director 2,12,400 2,12,400
Ms. Samyuktha Surendran - independent Director 1,77,000 2,65,500
3,89,400 4,77,909
h} Salary & Perquisites
Mr. Ojes Cheriyan Madappattu - Str. Manager 23,13,100 23,13,100
23,13,100 23,13,100

#185, (Ol No. 160),
2nd FLOOR,
O | POONAMALLEE High ROAD,
KILPAUK, /s V




Kudgi Transmission Limited

H) Other Notes forming part of the financial statements {Amount in Rs.}
©) Amount due ¢o and due {(from) related parties(net):
Amounts due to / (from)
Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2021 2020
Larsen & Toubro Limited 5,380 1,07,36,144
L&T Infrastructure Development Projects Litited 43,34,192 40,11,664
L&T Chennai Tada Tollway Limited - 40,895

d) Terms and conditions of tramsactions with related parties :

The sales to and purchases from related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length
transactions. Qutstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and interest free and settlement occurs in cash.

There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or payables. This assessment is
undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the

related party operates.

€) There is no provision for bad and doubtfal debts to related parties with regard to outstanding payables and there is no

expense recognized in respect of bad and doubtful debts duve from related partics.

f) Comp of Key M Personeel of the Company
. As at March 31, | As at March 31,
Particulars 2021 2020
Short term employee henefits 25,90,294 25,89,159
Director Sitting Fees 3,89 400 4,77 900
Other long term benefits - 1,35,897
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Kudgi Transmission Limited
H) Other Notes forming part of the financial statements (Amount in Rs.)

7 Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 12 "Income taxes"

The major components of income tax expense for years ended March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2024 are:

Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2021 2020
Profit and loss section:
Current Tax:
Current income tax charge (Refer Note Below) - -
Adjustments of current tax of prior year - 1,10,90,362

Deferred Tax (Refer Noie Below):
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences - =
Effect on deferred tax balances due 1o change in income tax rate - .

Income tax reported in the statement of profit and loss - 1,10,94,362

Notes:

1. The Government of India has reduced the corporate tax mtes from 30% to 22% through the Taxation Laws
{Amendment) Act, 2019 which is effective from st April 2019, As per the same if assessee opis new corporaie tax
rate, Minimum Alternative Tax provisions (MAT) provisions are not applicable. Kudgi Transmission Ltd. has opted for
new corporale tax rate from the financial year 2019-20. Since the Company had adjusted brought forward unabsorbed
depreciation against taxable income, the tax Hability for the year 2020-21 is Nil.

2. The deferred tax charge or credit and the comesponding deferred tax liabilitics or assets are recognised using the tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognised
only to the extent there s reasonable certainty that the assets can be realised in the future. The Company has
mnabsarbed depreciation under taxation laws, but deferred tax assets were not recognised as there is a virtual
uncertainty for realisation of such assets. Deferred tax asseis are reviewed as at each Balance Sheet date for
appropriateness of their camrying value.

8 Disclosure pursnant to Ind AS 116 - *' Leases”

On March 30, 2019, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has notificd new Ind AS on leases, Indian Accounting
Standard (Ind AS) 116 which is applicable from 01/404/2019. However, the application of IND-AS 116 did not have
any significant impact on recognition and measurement of lease rental in the financial position and the operational

results of the Company. The Company has not acquired any assets either under Finance lease or under Operating lease
as on March 31, 2021,

9 Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 33 "Earnings per share”

Basic and Ditwted Eamings per share (EPS} computed in accordance with Ind AS 33 “Earnings per share”.

. Year Ended Year Ended
Particul
Bt March 3], 2021 | March 31, 2020

Basic and Diluted carnings per eqnify share:
Profit for the year attributable to owners of the

Company for calculating hasic earnings per share () = 61,58,68,560 62,91,86,082
Weightcd average number of equity shares astanding B 19,26,00,000 19.26.00,000
for calculating basic earmings per share

Basic and Diluted earnings per equity share () A/B 3.20 3.27

Face value per equity share (%) 10.00 10.00




Kudgi Transmission Limited
H) Other Notes forming part of the financial statements {Amount in Rg.)

10 Disclosures pursnant to Ind AS 1 - "P, tation of Fil a1 G "

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all
other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is
to maximize shareholder value.

1

—_

Some of the land owners claimed compensation beyond authority defined values, relating to Right of use from the
Company and raised the dispute in the District cowrt. The quantum of compensation if ordered against the company
shall become payable. However, quantification may not be possible since more than one district courts are invelved in
the matter.

12 COVID-19 Disclosure

As per Management’s curent assessment, no significant impact is anticipated on cammying ameunts of financial assets,
financial liabilities and investments. The management will continue to monitor for changes in the fiture economic
conditions. Accordingly, the financial position and results of operations as of and for the year ended 315t March 2021
have not been adjusted to reflect their impact. The eventual outcome of the impact of the global health pandemic may
be different from the estimate made as on the date of approval of these Financial Statements.
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Kudgi Transmission Limited
H) Other Notes forming part of the financial statements {Amount in Rs.}

13 Financial Instruments
Disclosure of Financial Instruments hy Category

Financial instruments by Note As as As at March 31, 2021 As as As at March 31, 2020
categories No, FVTPL FVTOCI Amortized cost FVTPL FVTOCI Amortized cost

Financial Assets

Security Deposits 2 . = 50,000 - E 182,600

Investment in Liquid Mutaal ¢ 24.22,66.792 R . 2,07,90,00.522 - .

Fund Units

Lease receivable 3 - - 15,80,86,27,613 - - 15,30,44,82,392

Cash and Bank Balances 7 - - 3,82,86,89,804 - - 2,28 02 66,690

Other bank balances 8 = - 78,61,72.167 - - -
Total Fi ial Assets 24,22,66,792 - 20,42,35,39,584 2,07,90,00,522 = 17,58,49,31,082
Financial liabilities

Non converiihle debentures 1i - - 13,65,39,52,055 - - 14,05,60,42,672

Slsat=tknancs 15 - - 1,63,56,53,469 . . 160,66,57,546

Liabilities

Trade Payables 14 5 = 1,22,24,113 - - 3,22,66,684
Total Financial Liabilities - - 15,30,18,29,637 - - 15,69.49,66,202
Default and breaches

There are no defaults with respect to payment of principal interest, sinking find or redemption ferms and 1o breaches of the terms and conditions of the debentures.
There are no breaches during the year which permitted debenture holder to demand accelerated payment.

14 Fair value of Financial asset and liabilities at amortized cost

. Noie As as As at March 31, 2021 As a8 As at March 31, 2020
Particular ~ . 5 A
Ne.  Carrying amount Fair value Carrying amount Fair value

Financial Assets

Security Deposits 2 50,000 50,000 1,82,000 1,82,000

Lease receivable 3 15,80,86,27,613  15,80,86,27,613 15,30,44,82, 392 15,30,44,82 392

Cash and Bank Balances 7 3,82,86,89,804 3,82,86,89,804 2.28.02 66,690 2,28,02,66,690

Other bank balances 8 78,61,72,167 78,61,72,167 - -
Total Fi ial Assets 20,42,35,39,584  20,42,35,39,584  17,58,49,31,082  17,58,49,31,082
Financial liabilities

Non convertible debentures I1 13,65,39,52,055  13,65,39,52,055 14,05,60,42,672  14,05,60,42,672

xberCtimont Fiifancidl 5 1,63,56,53,469  1,63.5653469  160,66,57,546  1,60,66,57,546

Liabilities

Trade Payables 14 1,2224,113 1,22,24,113 3,22,66,684 3,22.66,684
Total Fi ial Liahilities 15,30,18,29,637  15,30,18,29,637 _ 15,69,49,66,902  15,69,49,66,902

The carrying amount of current financial assets and current trade and other payables measured at amortized cost are considered to be the same as their fair values,
due to their short term nature.

The carrying amount of security deposits measured at amortized cost is considered to be the same as its fair value due to its insignificant value.
The carrying vahe of non convertible debentures approxamate fair value as the instruments are at prevailing market rate.
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Kudgi Transmission Limited
H; Other Notes forming part of the financial statements (Amount in Rs.)

15 Fair Valae Measurement
Fair Value Measurement of Financial assets and Financial liabilities
Fair value hierarchy

As at March 31, 2021

Financial Assets & Liabilities Measured at FV -

N . Note No. Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Recurring fair value meagurement
Financial assets measared at FVTPL
Investment in Liquid Mirtual Fund Units 6 24,22.66,792 - = 24,22,66,792
Total of Financial Assets 24,22,66,792 - - 24,22,66,792
Financial Liabilities measured at FVTPL - - - -
Totat of Financial Liabilities = = = B
Financial Asset & Liabilities Mensured at Amortized
cost for which fair values are to be disclosed NotelNu: Lexelll Eeveli2 Ecyelld Total
Financial Assets
Security Deposits 2 - 50,000 - 50,000
Lease receivable 3 - 15,80,86,27,613 - 15,80,86,27,613
Total of Financial Assets - 15,80,86,77,613 - 15,30,86,77,613
Financial Liabilities
Non contvertible Diebentures il - 13,65,39.52 055 - £3,65,39,52,055
Other Cuerent Financial Liabilities 15 - 1,63,56,53,469 - 1.63,56,53,469
Trade Payables 14 - 1,22,24,113 - 1,22.24,113
Total Financial Liabilities - 15,30,18,29,637 - 15,30,18,29.637
As at March 31, 2020
P fAsscy () Liabifiticn) Ienmued] ot [0 = o Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Recurring FYM
Financial azsets measured at FVTPL
Investment in Liquid Mutual Fund Units 6 2,07.90,00,522 - - 2,07,90,00,522
Taotal of Financial Assets 2,07,90,00,522 - - 2,07,%0,00,522
Financial Liabilities measured at FYTPL - - - -
Total of Financial Liabilities . - _ N
Financial Asset & Liahilities Measured at Amortized
cost for which fair values are to be disclosed iNoge No: Kevelll Eeveld) Eeveld, ilotal
Financial Assets
Security Deposits 2 - 1,82.000 - 1,82,000
Lease receivable 3 - 15,30,44,82,392 - 15,30,44,82,392
Total Financial Assets - 15,30,46,64,392 - 15,30,46,64,392
Financial Liabilities
Non convertible Debentures 11 - 14,05,60,42,672 - 14,05,60,42,672
Other Current Financial Liabilities 15 - 1,60,66,57,546 - 1,60,66,57,546
Trade Payables 14 - 3,22,66,684 - 3,22,606,684
Total Financial Liabilities - 15,69,49,66,902 - 15,69,49,66,902

There are no transier between level | and level 2 during the year.
The Company pelicy is to recognize transfers into and transfer out of firir values hierarchy levels as at the end of the reporting period.
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Kudgi Transmission Limited

H; Other Notes forming part of the financial statements

16

Valuation technique and inputs used o determine fair value

Financial assets and liabilities Valuation method Inputs
Financial assets

Inrvestment in Liquid Mutual Fund Units Market Approach Net asset value
Security deposits Income approach Cash Flows

Lease reccivable Income approach Cash Flows
Financial liabilities

Non convertible debentures Ihcotne approach Effective rate of borrowing

Other Current Financial Liabilies

Income approach

Effective rate of borrowing

Assets pledged as security
. As at March 31, As at March 31,
Particubars Note No. 2021 2020
Non Financial Assets
Property, Plant & Equipment 1 4,85,39,234 5,34,65,266
Financial Assets
Lease receivable 3 15,02,24,55 446 15,30,44,82 392
Ivesiments [ 24,22 66,792 2,07,90,00,522
Cash and Bank Balances 7 3,82,86,89,804 2,28,02,66,690
Other Bank Balances 8 78,61,72,167 B
Total 19,92,81,23,443 19,71,72,14,870
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Kudgi Transmission Limited
H} Other Notes forming par¢ of the financial statements {Amoumt in Rs.)

17 Fi ial Risk M t

14

The Company's activities expose it to variety of financial risks : market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's focus is to
foresee the unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimize potential adverse effects on its financial performance, The Board of
Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management framework. The Board of
Directors has established a risk 1 policy to identify and analyze the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits
and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management systems are reviewed periodically to reflect changes in
market conditions and the Company’s activities. The Board of Directors oversee compliance with the Company’s risk management
policies and procedures, and reviews the risk management framework.

a) Market risk
The market risk is the risk that the fiir value or future cash flows of a financial instrament will fluctuate because of changes in market
prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk.

(i) Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate becanse of changes in foreign
exchange rate,
The Company is not exposed to foreign currency rigk as it has no borrowings in foreign currency.

(i} Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates.

The Interest risk arises to the Company mainly from Long term borrowings with variable rates. The Company measures risk through
sensitivity analysis.

Currently, Non Convertible Debentures are at Fixed rate linked to Credit Rating of the project. Any changes shall have an impact on the
rates.

The Company's exposure to interest rate risk due to variable interest rate borrowings is as follows:

As at March 31, As at March 31,
2021 2020

Particulars

Borrowings* Nil Nil
*The Company does not have any borrowings at variable rate.

Sensitivity analysis based on average owtstanding Senior Debt

Impact on profit/ loss afier tax

I i i
mterest Rate Risk Analysis E.Y. 202021 F.Y. 2019-20

Increase or decrease in interest rate by
25 base point Nil Nil

Nete: Prafit will increase in case of decrease in inferest rate and vice versa

(i) Price risk

-—

Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices
{other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk).

The Company is exposed to price risk due to investoents in mutual finds and classified as fair value through profit and loss.

The Company measures risk through sensitivity analysis.

The Company's risk management policy is to mitigate the risk by investments in diversified mutual finds,

The Company's exposure to price risk due to Investment in Liquid Mutmal Fued Units is as follows:

As at March 31, As at March 31,

Particulars Note No. 2021 2020
Investment in Liquid Mutual Fund
Units 6 24,22,66,792  2,07.90,00,522
Sensidivity Analysis
Impact on profit/ loss after tax
B, ¥, 2026-21 F.Y. 2019-20
Increase or decrease i NAV by 2% 48,45,336 4.,15,80,010

Note - [n case of decrease in NAV profit will reduce and vice versa.
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Kudgi Transmissien Limited
H) Other Notes forming part of the financial statements (Amount in Rs.}

b}

<)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities that are settled by
delivering cash or another financial assets.

The Company is exposed to Liquidity risk due to borrowings and trade and other payables.

The Company measares risk by forecasting cash fiows.

The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is fo ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its
liabilities when due without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation. The Company ensures that it
has sufficient fund to meet expecied operational expenses, servicing of financial obligations.

The follewing are the contractual maturities of financial Eabilities

As at March 31, 2021 Carrying Amount upte 1 year 1 -2 years 2 -Syears > & years

Non Derivative Financial Liabiities

Non convertible Debentures 14,01,39,52,055 36,00,00,900 36,00,00,000 1,25,00,00,000 12,04,39,52,055
Trade Payables 1,2224,113 122,24 113 - - -
Derivative Financial Liahilities - - - - -
As at March 31, 2020 Carrying Amgunt __ uptoe | year 1-2 years 2 - S years > 5§ years
Non Derivative Financial Liabilities
Non convertible Debentures 14,41,6042,672 36,00,00,000 36,00,00,000 1,16,00,00,0a00 12,53,6042,672
Trade Payables 3,22.66,684 3,22.66,684 - - -
Derivative Financial Liabilities - - - - -
Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing to discharge an
obligation.

The Company is exposed to credit risk with regard to receipt of annuity income as per the transmission service agreement. In case of
shortfalt, the Company shall go for working capital loan or promoter funding or any other form of temporary funding.




Kudgi Transmission Limited

H) Other Notes forming part of the financial statements (Amount in Rs.)
18 Disclosure pursuant to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2016 (MSMED Act):
. As at March 31, | As at March 31,
8.No. Particulars 2021 2020
(i)  |Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of year 61,02,374 1,43,95,806
i) Interest accrued and due thereon to suppliers under MSMED Act on
the above amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of year B -
(iif) Payment amount made to the supphier (other than interest) beyond the
appointed day during the year . B
v} Interest amount paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the
MSMED Act, 2006 ) i
W) Interest amount paid by the buyer under MSMED Act, 2006 (other
than Section 16) . )
Inferest amount due and payable for the period of delay in meking
(vi) payment {which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during ) }
the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED
Act, 2006
(vii} (Inferestamount accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year - -
Further interest amount remaining due and payable even in the
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues above are
(viii} [actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance - -
of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act,
2006

Note: The information has been given in respect of such vendors 1o the extent they could be identified as "Micro, Smail
and Medium" enterprises on the basis of information available with the Company.

19 Previous year's figures have been regrouped / reclassified where ever applicable.
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iv)

Other Notes forming part of the financial statements

Disclosure pursuant to Appendix - I o Ind AS 115 - " Service Concession Arrangements"
Description and classification of the arrangement

Kudgi Transmission Limited was incorporated on November 27, 2012 under the Companies Act 1956 as a wholly owned subsidiary of
M/s. REC Transmigsion Projects Company Limited (RECTPCL) as a Special Purpose Vehicle company to develop transmission system
required for evacuation of power ffom NTPC Kudgi. The certificate of commencement of business was issued on January 11, 2013, M.
REC TPCL has floated a bid on Build Own Operate and Maintain (BOOM) basis for selection of Transmission Service Provider for the
above said project and M/s. L&T Infrastructure Development Projects Limited {L&T IDPL) was the successfil bidder. Accordingly, the
Company was acquired by L&T IDPL from REC TPCL on August 30, 2013 (effective date).

The project is for 35 years from the Scheduled Commercial Operation Date, which is 18 months for first transmission element and 28
months for second transmission element from effective date as per the Transmission Service Agreement (TSA) dated 14th May 2013
entered into with potential Long Term Transmission Customer(s). The Company commenced operations of project on September 24,
2016.

Significant Terms of the arrangements
(a) Monthly Transmission Charges:
The Monthly Transmission Charges for each contract year shall be caleulated in accordance with the provision of Schedule 5 of
TSA.
(b) License Fee

A transmission licenses for inter-State transmission, including a person deemed to be an inter-State transmission licensee ynder any
of the provisions to Section 14 of the Electricity Act 2003, shall pay license fee at the rate of 0.11% per annum on the annual
transmission charges,

{c) Rebate as per clause 10,7 of Tr ission Service agr t,

(i) Rebate of 2% shall be allowed on the Monthly Transmission charge Invoice or supplementary Bill for payments made in fll
within ong business day of the receipt of the Invoice.

(i) Rebate of 1% shall be allowed for payment of lnvoice subsequently, but within the due date.

Operation and Maintenance of the Project

Transmission Service Provider (TSP) shall be responsible for ensuring that the project is operated and maintained as specificd under
article 7 of the © isgton service agm (T8A) in accerdance with the Indian Electricity Grid Code/ State Grid Code in an efficient,
coordinated and cconomical manner.

Details of Termination
TSA can be terminated on account of defaudt of the Company in the circumstances as specified under article 13 of the TSA.
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Kudgi Transmissiom Limnited
CEN : U40106TN2012PLC111122
L Siguificant Accounting Policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policics adopted in the preparation of these financial statements. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

{a) Compliance with IndAS

The Company's financial statements comply in all material respects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under section 133 of
{b) Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on = historical cost basis, except for the following items

Ttems Measurement basis
Certain financial assets and liabilities Fair value
e Fair value of plan assets less present value of defined
Net defined benefit (asset)/liability benefit obligations
Assets held for sale fair value less costs to sell

(€) Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with IndAS requires the I t to make esti and assumptions
considered in the reparted amounts of assets, liabilities (including contingent liabilitics), income and expenses, The Management believes
that the estimates used in preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasomable. Actual results could differ due to these
estimates and the differences between the actual results and the estimates are recognised in the periods in which the results are known /
materialize. Fstimates include allowance for doubtful debts/advances, future obligations in respect of retirement benefit plans, fair value
measurement etc.

{d) Esti and

The key assumptions conceming the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The
Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances
and assumptions about fisture developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the
control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur,

(f} Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in
active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques inchiding the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from
observable markets where possible, but where this is not fasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values, Judgments

include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the
reported fair value of financial instruments.

(g) Taxes

Deforred tax assets are recognised for unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
credits can be utilised. Sigmificant management judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised,
based upon the likely timing and the kevel of fisture taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

{h) Measurement of fair value

A number of the accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values for both financial and non-financial assets and
liabilitics. Fair value r ts are gorized into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measuretnents are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entircty, which are described as follows:

* Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted} in active markets for identical assets or liabifities that entity can access at measurement date

* Level 2 inputs other than quoted prices included in Lavel 1, that are observable for the asset or linbility, either directly (as prices} or
indirectly (derived from prices); and

* Level 3 inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on abservable market data (unobservable inputs).

Presentation of financial statements

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Statements of Changes in Equity are prepared and presented in the format
prescribed in Schedule 111 to the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™). The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared and presented as per the
requirements of Ind AS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows™. The disclosure requirements with respect to items in the Balance Sheet, Statement of
Profit and Loss and Statement of Changes in Equity , as prescribed in Scheduls I to the Act, arc presented by way of notes forming part of
accounts along with the other notes required to be disclosed under the notified Accounting Standards and the SEBI (Listing Obligations &
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

A 1n the fi ial st are presented in Indian Rupees rounded off to nearest rupee in line with the reqairements of Schedule 111
Per share data are presented in Indian Rupees to two decimal places.




Kudgi Transmission Limited
CIN : U40106 TN2H ZPECI11122
I. Significant Accounting Policies

3 Revenue recognition

Reveme is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed as revenue are inclusive of duties and
taxes and net of discounts, rebates and other similar allowances.

The Company primarily derives revenue in terms of the Appendix D to Ind AS 115 which covers specific aspects related to the Service
Concession Agreements. The Company follows Financial Asset Model prescribed in the Appendix.

Effective April 01, 2018, the Company adopied Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” using the cumulative catch-up
transition method, applied to contracts that were not completed as of Apnl 01, 2018. In aceordance with the cumulative catch-up transition
method, the comparatives have not been retrospectively adjusted.

a} Revenue fom annuity based projects is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss over the concession period of the respective
projects based on the implicit rate of return embedded in the projected cash flows. Such income is duly adjusted for any variation in the
amount and timing of the cash fows in the period in which such variation occurs.

b) Interest income from term deposils is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into sccount the amount outstanding and the
applicable rate.

c} Fair value gains on current investiments carried at fair value are ingluded in Cther income.
d) Dividend ingome is recognised when the right to receive the samne is established by the reporting date.
¢) Other items of incorne are recognised as and when the right to receive arises.

f) Insurance claims are accounted for on the basis of clains admitied / expected to be admitted and to the extent that the amount
recoverable can be measured reliably and it is reasenable to expect ulumate collection.

4  Cash and bank balances

Cash and bank balances also include fixed deposits, margin money deposits, earmarked balances with banks and other bank balances which
have restrictions on repatriation. Short term highly liquid investments being not free from more than insignificant risk of change are not
inchuded az part of cash and cash equivalents.

5 Cash flow statement

Cash flow statement is prepared segrepating the cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities. Cash flow from operating
activities is reported using indirect method. Under the indirect method, the net profit/(loss) is adjusted for the effects of

{a) transactions of a non-cash nature;
(b} any deferrals or accruals of past or future aperating cash receipts or payments and,
{c) all other items of income or expense associated with investing or financing cash flows.

The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated based on the available information. Cash and
cash equivalents (including bank batances) are reflected as such in the Cash Flow Statement. Those cash and cash equivalents which are not
available for general use as on the date of Balance Sheet are also included under this category with a specific disclosure.

6 Property, plast and equipment (PPE)

Property, plant and equipment ars stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and cunmiative imparrment, Historical cost inclodes
expenditure that is direetly attributable to acquisition of the items. [ Land acquired under long term lease is classified as "Property, Plant and
equipment” and is depreciated over the peried of lease.]

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's casrying amount or recognised as & separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that
the future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity and the cost of the item can be measured refiably. Properties in
the cowrse for production, supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised impairinent loss. Cost includes
expenditure that is direotly atiributable and for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Company's accounting
pelicy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for infended
use. Depreciation of thess assets, on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.
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Kudgi Transmission Limited
CIN : Ud0106TN2012PLCI11122
L Sigmificant Accounting Policies
The estimated useful kife of the asseis based on management evaluation are as follows:

Estimated
Category of Property, plant and equipment useful life
(in years)
Buildings including ownership flats 50
Buildings (Temporaty Structures) 3
Plant and equip 8
DG Sets 12
Air-conditicning and refrigeration equipment 12
Split AC and Window AC 4
Furniture and fixtures 10
Vehicles:
Motor cars (other than those imder the Company owned car scheme) 7
Motor cars (wnder the Company owned car scheme) 5

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal of an item of property plant
and equipment is determined as the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recogmised in the
statement or profit and loss.

Depreciation charge for impaired assets is adjusted in future periods in such a manner that the revised carrying amount of the asset is
allocated over its remaining useful life.

7 Exceptiongl items

On certain oceasions, the size, type or incidence of an item of income or expense is such that its disclosure improves an wnderstanding of the

perk of the Company. Such income or expense is classified as an exceptional item and accordingly disclosed in the notes to accounts.

8 Investments

Trade iny comprise inv ts in entities in which the Company has strategic business interest.

Investments, which are readily realizable and are intended to be held for not more than one vear, are classified as current investments, All
other mvestments are classified as long term investments.

Long-term investments (excluding investment properties), are carried individually at cost less provision for diminution, other than temporary,
i the value of such investments. Current investments arc carried individually at the fair vatue. Cost of investments include acquisition
charges such as brokerage, fees and duties.

9 Employee benefits

Employee benefits include provident find, employee state insurance scheme, gratuity fund, compensated absences, long service awards and
post-croployment medical benefits.

(i} Short term employee benefits

All employce benefits failing due wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short term employee benefits.
The benefits like salaries, wages, short term compensated absences etc. and the expected cost of bonus, ex-pratia are recognised in the
period in which the employee renders the refated service.

‘The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by employees are
recognised during the year when the employecs render the service. These benefits include perfonmance incentive and compensated
absences which are expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employee renders the related
setvice.,

The cost of shori-term compensated absences is accounted as wnder :

(a} in. case of accumulated compensated absences, when employees render the services that increase their entitlement of future
compensated absences; and

(b) in case of non-accumulating compensated absences, when the absences oceur,
(ii} Post employment henefits
(a) Defined contribution plans;

The Company's State governed provident fund linked with employee pension scheme are defined contribution plans. The contribution
paid/ payable under the scheme is recognised during the period in which the employee renders the related service.
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L Siguificant Accounting Pelicies
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12

{b) Defined benefit plans:

The employees' gratuity fand scheme and the provident fund scheme managed by the Life Insurance Corporation and recogaised
provident fund respectively are the Company's defined benefit plans, The preseat value of the obligation under such defined benefit
plans is determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of service as
giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entittement and measures each wnit separately to build up the final obligation.

The obligation is measured at the present valve of the estimated fiture cash flows, The discount rate used for determining the present
value of the obligation wnder defined benefit plans, is based on the market yield on govermnment securities of a maturity period
equivalent to the weighted average maturity profile of the related obligations at the Bakince Sheet date. Actuarial gaina and losses are
recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

Remeasurement, comprising actuarfal gains and losses, the retum on plan assets (excluding net interest} and any change in the effect of
asset ceiling (if applicable) are recognised in other comprehensive income and is reflected immediately in retained carnings and is not
reclassified to profit & loss.

The nferest efement in the actarial valuation of defined benefit plans, which comprises the implicit interest cost and the impact of
changes in discount rate is recognised as employee benefit expenses in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

In case of funded plans, the fair value of the plan asscts is reduced from the gross obligation under the defined benefit plans to
recognize the obligation on a net basis,

Giains or losses on the curtailment or settlement of any defined benefit plan are recognised when the curtailment or settlement occurs,
Past service cost is recognised as expense at the carlier of the plan amendment or curtailment and when the Company recognizes
related restructuring costs or termination benefits.

(iii) Other long term employee benefits:

The cbligation for other long term: employee benefits such as long term compensated absences, libility on account of Retention Pay
Scherne are recognised in the same manner as in the case of defined benefit plans as mentioned in (i)(b) above.

(iv) Termination benefits
Termination benefits such as compensation under Vohmtary Retirement cum Pension Scheme are recognised as expense and a liability
is recognised at the earlier of when the Company can no longer withdraw the offer of the termination bencfit and when the entity
recognizes any related restructuring costs.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs include interest calculated using the effective interest method, amortization of ancillary costs incurred and exchange
differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost. Costs in connection
with the borrowing of fimds to the extent not directly related to the acquisition of qualifying assets are charged to the Consolidated Statement
of Profit and Loss over the tenure of the loan. Borrowing costs, allocated to and utilized for acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, pertaining to the period from commencement of activities relating te construction / development of the qualifying asset up to
the date of capitalization of such asset are added (o the cost of the assets. Capitalization of borrowing casts is suspended and charged to the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss during extended periods when active development activity on the qualifying assets is interrupted.

Segment reporting

The Company identifies primary segments based on the dominamt source, nature of risks and returns and the internal organization and
management structure. The operating scgments are the segments for which separate financial information is available and for which operating
profit / loss amounts are evaluated regularly by the executive Management in deciding how to allocate resources and in assessing
performance.

The accounting policies adepted for segment reporting are as per Indian Accounting Standard 108 "Operating Segments” (IND AS 108) read
with SEBI’s circular dated July 5, 2016. Segment revenue, segment expenses, segment assets and segment lisbilities have been identified to
segmenis on the basis of their relationship to the operating activities of the segment. The identification of operating segments and reporting of
amounts is consistent with performance assessment and resource allocation by the management.

Inter revenue is ac d on the basis of transactions which are primarily determined based on market / fair value factors.

Revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities which relate to the Company as a whele and are not allocable to segments on reasonable basis have
been included under ‘unallocated revenue / expenses / assets / liabilities'.

Leases

The Company assesscs whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identificd asset for a perfed of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether:

(i) the contract invelves the use of an idemtified asset;

(if) the Company has substantially ail of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the petiod of the lease; and,

{iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-ofiuse asset (“ROU™) and 2 corresponding lease liability for all
lease amangements in which it is a lessee, excent for leases with a term of bwelve months or less {short-term leases} and low value leases. For
these short term and low value leases, the Company recogmizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the
term of the lease.

Certaim leass arrangements inchudes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease
liabilities inchudes these options when it is reasonably certain that they wilk be exercised.
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The right-of use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease
payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently
measured at cost less accunilated depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful Life of
the nnderlying asset. Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.¢. the higher of the fair value less
cost to sell and the value-in-use} is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cashflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which
the asset belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the firture lcase payments, The lease payments are discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease o, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of
these leases. Lease habilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the Company changes its
assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option. Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in
the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (lass) for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year. Dihnted eamnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) for the year as adjusted for dividend, interest and other
charges 1o expense or income {net of any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of
equity shares considered for deriving basic eamnings per share and the weighted average mumber of equity shares which could have been
issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion to
equity shares would decrease the net profit per share from contimiing ordinary operations. Potential dilutive equity shares are deemed to be
canverted as at the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date. The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for
the proceeds receivable had the shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e. average market value of the outstanding shares). Dilutive
potential equity shares are determined independently for each period presented. The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity
shares are adjusted for share splits / reverse share splits and bomus shares, as appropriate.

Income taxes

The Income tax expense or credit for the year is the tax payable on current year's taxable income based on the applicablc income tax rate
adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses. The current income
tax charge is calculated on the basis of tax laws enacted or substantively enacted pt the end of the reporting period. Management periodically
evaluaies, positions taken in tax retums with respect to sifuations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation and provisions
are established where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Minitvum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives fitture economic benefits in the form of adjustment to
future income tax liability, is considered as an asset if there is convincing evidence that the entity will pay normal income fax. Accordingly,
MAT is recognised as an asset when it is highly probable that future economic benefit associated with it will flow to the entity.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, on temporary differences arising between the tax bages of assets and labilities and their carrying
amounts in the financial staiements. However deferred income tax is not accounted if it arises from the initial recognition of an asset or
liability that at the time of the transaction affects neither the accounting profit nor tixable profit {tax loss). Deferred income tax is determined
using tinx rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset/lability is realized or settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it iz probable that future taxable
amounds wilk be available to utilize those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilitics are offset, when the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and
Liabilities and when the deferred tax balances related to the same authority.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity wherein the related tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Impairment of assets

The carrying values of assets / cash generating untg at each balance sheet date are reviewed for impairment if any indication of impairment
exists. The following intangible assets are tested for impairment each financial year even if there is no indication that the asset is impaired:

(a) an intangible asset that is not yet available for use; and (b) an intangible assct that is amortized over a period exceeding ten years from the
date when the asset is avatlable for use.

If the carrying amount of the assets exceed the estimated recoverable amount, an impairment is recognised for such excess amount. The
impaitment loss is recognised a5 an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss, unless the asset is camicd at revalued amount, in which case
any impairment loss of the revalued asset is treated as a revaluation decrease to the extent a revaluation reserve is available for that asset.

The recoverable amount s the higher of the fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. In assessing value in nse, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects the current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimated future cash flows have not been adjusted.

When there s indication that an impairment loss recognised for an asset (other than a revalued asset} in earlier accounting perieds no longer
exists or may have decreased, such reversal of impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, to the extent the amount was
previously charged to the § it of Profit and Loss. In case of revalued assets such reversal is not recognised.
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Provisions, ¢ t iabilities and contingent assets

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past events and it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to setile the obligation in respect of which a reliable estirmate can be made.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting pericd, taking into account the risks and unceriainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash
flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value
of money is material)

When seme or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a receivable is
recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that the reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured
reliably.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in notes in case of a present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation or a present obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimate is possible .
Contingent assets are disclosed in the financial statements where an inflow of economic benefits are probable.

Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial Liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or fi ial liabilitics, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly atributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial habilities at fair value thraugh profit or loss are recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

a) Financial Assets

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirsty at either amortized cost or fair value, depending on the
classification of the financial assets

I in debt nsir that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortized cost {unless the same are
designated as fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)):

* The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

* The contractual terms of instrament give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are salsly payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (mless the
same are designated as fair value through profit or loss)

* The asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets;
and

» The contractaal terms of instrament give rise on specified dates to cash flows that arc solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount cutstanding,

Debt instruments at FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments and all changes are recognised in profit or loss.
Investments in equity instruments are clagsified as FVTPL, unless the Company irrevocably elects on initial recognition to present subsequent
changes in fair value in OCI for equity instruments which are not held for trading.

Interest income, dividend income and exchange difference (on debt instrument) on FVTOCI debt instruments is recognised in profit or loss
and other changes in fair value are recognised in OCI and accumulated in other equity. On disposal of debt instruments FVTOQCI the
curmdative gain or loss previously accumulated in other equity is reclassified to profit & loss. However in case of equity instruments at
FVTOCI cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified 1o profit & loss on disposal of investments.

A financial asset is primarily derecognized when:

L. The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

ii. the company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in
full without material delay to a third panty under a pass-through arrangement; and with a)the company has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or b) the company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the asset.

Impairment of financial assets: The Company applies the expected credit kyss model for recognizing impairment loss on financial assets
measured at amnrtized cost, debt instruments at FVTOCI, lease receivables, trade receivables and other contractual rights to receive cash or
other fi | asset and financial not designated as at FVTPL. For the purpose of measuring expected credit loss allowance for
businesses othes than financial services for trade receivables, the Company has used a provision matrix which takes into account historical
credit loss experience and adjusted for forward looking information as permitted under Ind AS 109.
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b) Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified at imitial recognition, as financial liabilities as fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. All financial Liabilities are recognised
initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly atiributable transaction costs.

Loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized costs using Effective Interest Rate method.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) are subsequently measured at fir value.

Finanial guarantce confracts are subsequently measwed at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment
requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortization.

Financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
The Company designates certain hedging instruments, which include derivatives, embedded derivatives and non-derivatives in respect of

foreign currency nisk, as either fair value hedges, cash flow hedges, or hedges of net i its in foreign operations, Hedges of foreign
exchange risk on firm commitments are accounted for as cash flow hedges.

Changgs in fair value of the designated portion of derivatives that qualify as fair value hedges arc recognised in profit or loss immediately,
together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the hedged risk.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or when it no longer qualifies for
hedge accounting. The fair value adjustment to the carrying amount of the hedged item arising from the hedged risk is amortized to profit or
loss from that date.

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are desipnated and qualify as cash flow hedpes is recognised in other
comprehensive incame and accumulated under the heading of cash flow hedging reserve. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity relating to (effective portion as described above)
are reclassified to profit or loss in the periods when the hedged item affects profit or loss, in the same Line as the recognised hedged item.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or when it no longer quaiifies for
hedge accounting. Any gain or loss recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity at that time remains in equity and is
recognised when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised in profit or loss. When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur,
the gain or loss accumulated in equity is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Tmpairment of financial assets (Expected Credit Lass Medel)

The Company applies the expected credit loss model for recopnizing inpaitment loss on financial assets measured at amortized cost, deht
instruments at FYTOCI, lease receivables, trade receivables, other contractual rights to receive cash or other financial asset and financial
guarantees not designated at FVTPL,

Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of default ocewring as the weights. Credit loss is the
difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract/agreement and all the cash flows
that the Company expects to receive (i.e.. all cash shonfalls), discounted at the original effective interest rate. The Company estimates cash
flows by considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument, through the expected life of the financial instrument.

The Company measures the loss allowance for a financial instrament at an amount equal to the life-time expected credit losses if the credit
risk on that financial instrument has increase significantly since initial recognition If the credit risk has not increased significantly, the
Company measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses. 12-month expected eredit Josses are portion of
the life-time expected credit losses and represent the life-time cash shortfalls that will result if the default occurs within 12 months after the
reporting date and thus, are not cash shortfalls that are predicted over the next 12 months.

When making the assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Company uses the
change in the risk of 2 defanlt ocourring aver the expected life of the financial instriment instead of a change in the amount of the expected
credit loss. To achieve that, the Company compares the risk of a defiault occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the
risk of a default occurring on initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information, that is available without undue cost or
effort, that is indicative of significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition.

Operating Cycle

Based on the nature of products / activities of the Comparny and the normal time between acquisition of assets and their realization in cash or
cash equivalents, the Company has determined its operating cvcle as 12 months for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as
current and non-crarent.
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19 Claims

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts are discosed under conti Labilitics. Claims made by the company are
recognised as and when the same is approved by the respective authorities with whom the claim is lodged.

20 Commitments

Commitments are fisure liabilities for contractual expenditre. Commitments are classified and disclosed as follows:
(i) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for
(i) Uncalled liability on shares and other investments partly paid

(i) Funding related commitment to subsidiary, associate and joint venture companies and
(iv) Other non-cancellable commitments, if any, to the extent they are considered material and relevand in the opinion of management.

Other i related to sales/p made in the normal cowrse of business are not disclosed to avoid excessive details.
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